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The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department will be a utility 

that is a leader in providing public health protection and 

environmentally sound and innovative utility services using state-

of-the-art technologies, proven operational expertise, resource 

planning and excellent customer service in a cost-effective manner.  

vision statement

The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department is 

committed to serving the needs of Miami-Dade County 

residents, businesses, and visitors by providing 

high-quality drinking water and wastewater disposal 

services while providing for future economic growth 

via progressive planning; implementing water 

conservation measures; safeguarding public health 

and the environment; and providing for continuous 

process improvements and cost efficiencies.  

mission statement
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Carlos Alvarez 
mayor

Office of the County Mayor 
Miami-Dade County, Florida

March 31, 2006

Honorable Chairperson and Members 

Board of County Commissioners, Miami-Dade County, Florida

Dear Chairperson and Members of the Board of County Commissioners:

During FY 2005, the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department excelled in providing safe 

drinking water to Miami-Dade County residents, and continued to properly treat and dispose 

of wastewater.  These objectives were successfully accomplished even as costs increased, 

funding sources were compromised, and water and sewer rates remained low.

The Department installed a new treatment process at its John E. Preston Water Treatment 

Plant in Hialeah, in order to comply with new U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 

regulations on byproducts created by the disinfection of drinking water. It is important to point 

out that the Department chose the least expensive, yet highly effective treatment method, in 

order to save millions of dollars.  The new process eliminates many of the naturally occurring 

organic materials found in raw water supplied to the Preston plant.  Fewer of these materials 

in the water means fewer potentially hazardous byproducts are created when drinking water 

is disinfected.  

Also during the fiscal year, representatives of the EPA visited the Department to inspect 

some of its treatment facilities and discuss Consent Decrees (CD) and Settlement Agreements 

(SA) entered into during the 1990’s between the Department and EPA, as well as the Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection (DEP).  During their visit, EPA representatives were 

so impressed with the Department’s wastewater treatment and collection systems that they 

referred to the Department as a “model utility.”  

Looking ahead, the Department faces some serious challenges.  Miami-Dade County’s ever-

increasing population and its subsequent demand for new housing, as well as efforts to restore 

the Everglades, will compel the Department to look for new sources of water and develop 

improved systems for water reuse.  I am confident the Department is redoubling its efforts 

and working in conjunction with state authorities to find not only acceptable, but favorable, 

solutions to these challenges, while at the same time continuing to provide an excellent level 

of service to all residents.

Carlos Alvarez

Mayor

STEPHEN P. CLARK CENTER, 111 N.W. FIRST STREET, SUITE 2910, MIAMI, FLORIDA 33128-1994 • (305) 375-5071 • FAX (305) 375-3618
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Water & Sewer

The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department faced a number of challenges during fiscal year 

2005.  A constantly growing population, limited drinking water supplies and environmental 

restoration projects will continue to pose challenges in the years to come.  

We are facing a number of challenging issues.  One such issue is water supply.  The County 

is seeking alternatives to the Biscayne Aquifer, currently Miami-Dade County’s only source of 

water.  Some of the alternatives under study include increasing the County’s usage of highly 

treated wastewater and possibly using the deeper Floridan Aquifer.  

It is essential that the Department continue to run a tight financial ship.  In coming 

months, Miami-Dade Water and Sewer will thoroughly analyze its entire budget, to include 

its rate structure and likely future adjustments.  It will also be developing a system to monitor 

its financial condition, which will include conducting regular external and internal audits.  

Additionally, the Department will develop a multi-year budget in order to provide for long-

range planning and maintenance, as well as to prioritize improvements to water and sewer 

system infrastructure.  And, it will work to strengthen and enhance its efficiency program 

through joint labor-management initiatives designed to achieve operational efficiencies and 

improve departmental operations.  

The Water and Sewer Department, its management, and its employees are charged with 

the very important dual missions of providing County residents with safe drinking water, and 

protecting both the environment and the public health by properly treating and disposing 

of wastewater.  I am confident that the Department will work hard to achieve its goals in 

delivering excellent service to its customers every day.  

Sincerely, 

George M. Burgess
County Manager

George M. Burgess  
County Manager
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The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the 

Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department (the 

Department) for the fiscal year ended September 

30, 2005 is submitted herewith. Management 

is responsible, in all material respects, both for 

the accuracy of the data and the completeness 

and fairness of the presentation, including all 

disclosures.  The data is reported in a manner 

designed to present fairly the financial position 

and the results of operations of the Department.  All 

disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain 

an understanding of the Department’s financial and 

operational activities are included.  This report may 

also be accessed via the Internet at http://www.

miamidade.gov/wasd/reports_financial.asp.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is 

presented in three sections: introductory, financial 

and statistical.  The introductory section includes 

the Board of County Commissioners, the transmittal 

letters and the Department’s organizational chart.  

The financial section includes the independent 

auditor report, the Management’s Discussion  

and Analysis, the Department’s f inancial 

statements and supplementary financial data.  The 

statistical section includes selected financial and  

demographic information, generally presented on 

a multi-year basis.

In December 1972, the Board of County 

Commissioners (the Board) of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida (the County) created the Miami-Dade Water 

and Sewer Authority (the Authority) for the purpose 

of establishing an agency responsible for providing 

water and wastewater services throughout the 

County.  In 1973, all properties of the water and 

wastewater systems of the City of Miami (the City) 

and of the County were put under the control of 

the Authority.  The Board changed the status of the 

Authority to that of a County department effective 

November 1, 1983.  Under the provisions of Miami-

Dade County Ordinance 83-92, which directed 

the transition, the Authority was established as 

the “Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Authority 

Department” (the Department).  On October 19, 

1993, the Department changed its name to the 

Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department.

The Department’s water system, considered the 

largest water utility in the Southeast United States, 

serves approximately 408,000 retail customers 

and 15 wholesale customers within the County.  

The water system consists of three regional water 

treatment plants and five small auxiliary treatment 

facilities that service the southernmost area of the 

County.  Groundwater from the Biscayne Aquifer 

is the primary source of the raw water supply.  

There are six major wellfields comprised of 92 

individual wells, which supply untreated water to 

the treatment facilities.  Distribution throughout 

the service area of more than 400 square miles is 

performed via seven remote finished water storage 

and pumping facilities and water pumped directly 

from the water treatment plants.

The wastewater system serves approximately 

323,000 retail customers and 13 wholesale 

customers.  It consists of three regional wastewater 

treatment plants, 992 sewage pump stations and 

nearly 5,900 miles of collection, transmission and 

lateral pipelines.

management
Message from

Water and Sewer Department
P.O. Box 330316
3071 S.W. 38th Avenue • Room 247
Miami, Florida 33233-0316
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major initiatives
The New South 
Miami-Dade Water 
Treatment Plant
The first stages of construction began on the perim-

eter wall and other sections of the exterior and the 

surroundings for the Department’s newest water 

treatment plant in FY 04.  Installation of traffic lights 

and turn lanes comprising the entranceway into 

the facility began in FY 05.  Other portions of this 

substantial project include the combined wellfield 

construction and park improvements, and several 

raw and finished (treated) water transmission mains.  

These projects are in various stages of design 

and permitting; in fact, plans for all phases of con-

struction have been submitted to the Miami-Dade 

Building Department for construction permits.  

The facility, which will replace three of the five 

small treatment plants currently being operated in 

South Miami-Dade, will use the latest in membrane 

softening technology and will commence production 

with an initial treatment capacity of 20 million 

gallons per day (MGD).  The plant is expected to 

begin operations in 2011.  

The Water/
Wastewater Facilities 
Master Plans
By 2020, it is expected that Miami-Dade County’s 

population will have grown by approximately 20 

percent to 2.9 million people (Miami-Dade County 

Department of Planning and Zoning).  Water and 

sewer services will be primary among the services 

that will need to expand to accommodate the 

burgeoning populace.  The Department’s Water 

and Wastewater Facilities Master Plans were 

developed to address these specific needs and 

were approved in FY 03 by the Miami-Dade Board 

of County Commissioners.

 The plans outline the water and wastewater 

needs of the county as it seeks to sustain the 

projected growth in the area.  The Department 

plans to update these Master Plans to identify water 

treatment and distribution and sewage collection 

and disposal needs at the local level.  

The Infill Development 
Review Committee
The Infill Development Review Committee was 

established by the Department in 2003 to assess 

all new projects planned in areas with existing 

water and sewer infrastructure.  The committee 

specifically addresses new service needs created 

by redevelopment – particularly as it is affected by 

County policies.

Current departmental regulations were 

written primarily to address system extensions in 

previously undeveloped properties.  As property 

values escalate, there has been an increasing 

trend to redevelop properties in “infill” areas, 

especially within the City of Miami.  The Infill 

Committee analyzes infill projects and requires 

either those developer-funded improvements 
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that are necessary to adequately serve the infill 

projects or a contribution for future improvements 

by the department in a planned systematic process.  

Economic advantages result from removing 

possibly prohibitive costs from these development 

projects which benefit both the County and the  

private sector.

In FY 04, the Infill Development Review 

Committee reviewed 371 projects.  In 165 of those 

cases, developers were given the opportunity to 

make a contribution to an infill account in lieu of 

making the system improvements.  The reviews 

and determinations of the committee resulted in 

the Department collecting just under $1 million for 

the infill account.  

Hurricane Katrina 
Following a busy 2004 hurricane season, the 2005 

hurricane season proved to be a record-breaker.  

Although many of 2005’s storms came after the 

end of FY 05, the season had so many named 

storms—26 in all, including 13 hurricanes—that 

the National Hurricane Center ran out of names 

and began to use the letters of the Greek alphabet 

to identify them.  

Most infamous of all during FY 05 was Hurricane 

Katrina.  Hurricane Katrina had the dubious distinction 

of setting several records, including the costliest 

storm to hit the United States (estimated to cost 

at least $80 billion), as well as the deadliest U.S. 

hurricane since 1928 (at least 1,200 killed).  It should 

be noted that as of press time, assessments of 

both damage and deaths were still being conducted 

and so the figures presented here will likely  

be higher.  

Although most of Katrina’s damage took place 

along the northern coast of the Gulf of Mexico, 

Katrina first made landfall slightly north of Miami-

Dade County and it cut right through Miami-Dade.  

The storm was a Category 1 when it hit Miami-Dade 

County, causing many people to lose power for a 

few days, and incur some light damage.  

The Department sustained minimal damage from 

Katrina, and water and sewer service to customers 

was continuous.  However, operations were disrupted 

as the Department made emergency preparations 

before the storm, and it undertook recovery operations 

afterwards.  The disruptions were minimal and the 

Department was back to normal within a matter of 

a few days.  

Another Hurricane—Wilma—hit Miami-Dade 

County after the end of the fiscal year.  Wilma was 

stronger than Katrina and it affected a much wider 

area.  This storm and its impact will be discussed 

in greater deal in next fiscal year’s Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report.  
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Northwest Wellfield 
Land Acquisition
The Department has been working diligently to 

acquire lands surrounding its Northwest Wellfield 

to serve as a buffer zone around the wells, which 

supply water to the Department’s Hialeah and John 

E. Preston Water Treatment Plants.  The Department 

has obtained 85 acres of property surrounding the 

wellfields and is continuing to pursue the acquisition 

of more land in the area.  The land purchase will 

increase the protection area around the wellfield to 

the current 60-day line (the time it will take water 

from the area’s outermost boundaries to be drawn 

to the supply well).

Efficiency Program
Entering its eighth year during FY 05, Miami-Dade 

Water and Sewer Department’s efficiency program 

has continued to show great success in improving 

the Department’s operations and ultimately providing 

savings for water and sewer customers.

The POWER (Partnership Optimizing WASD’s 

Efficiency and Reengineering) program has been 

the vehicle for the implementation of several 

projects that started with ideas from innovative 

and inventive department employees.  Using in-

house staff to do tasks previously done by outside 

contractors represented the largest number of 

efficiency projects implemented and also the largest 

portion of the savings for the Department in FY 05.  

These and other projects have resulted in projected 

savings of $3,471,551 for the Department.

In addition to the approximately $3.5 million in 

savings for the Department and the subsequent 

low rates which customers are able to enjoy, the 

POWER program has resulted in more efficient 

operations, a reduction in operating and maintenance 

expenses, improved service to customers, as well 

as gainsharing bonuses for employees.  The program 

has received several national awards and has been 

used as an efficiency model for other Miami-Dade 

County departments to follow.

During FY 04, the Department established 

a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for 

gainsharing, which was subsequently approved by 

the Board of County Commissioners.  The agreement 

supports the POWER program by hinging gainsharing 

rewards directly to employee performance and 

realization of specific department goals.  Goals 

outlined in the MOU include improving employee 

safety and reducing incident rates, training all 

employees in mandatory classes and meeting federal 

and state water and wastewater standards.  

Injection Wells 
Consent Order
The Consent Order (CO) governing the use of 

deep injection wells for effluent disposal entered 

into between the Miami-Dade Water & Sewer 

Department and the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP) was superseded 

with a new agreement in 2004 that addresses 

concerns of fluid movement in injection wells 

at the Department’s South District Wastewater 

Treatment Plant.  
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Due to the complexity of the new CO and the 

involvement of several divisions and consulting 

firms, the Department developed and implemented 

an innovative CO database using advanced web 

technology for effective milestone tracking and 

information sharing.  The FDEP was impressed 

with the Department’s web design, subsequently 

using it as an example for other utilities.

Under the new CO, the Department will be 

constructing additional treatment facilities at the 

plant.  The treatment method will be High Level 

Disinfection (HLD), which requires filtration and 

disinfection with chlorine.  Construction of the HLD 

facilities will have to be completed by April 2009.  

In addition to the treatment, the Department is 

conducting a ground water study of the Floridan 

aquifer in the vicinity of the site.  

During this fiscal year, the Department 

completed, on or ahead of schedule, 97 milestones 

associated with this CO.  

Consent Decrees 
and Settlement 
Agreements
The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 

has, to date, successfully completed 91 percent 

of the mandated improvements under its Consent 

Decrees and Settlement Agreements (CD/SA) 

program with the United States Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA) and the FDEP. 

The Department continues to be in compliance 

with all the provisions of the CD/SA and through FY 

05 has not incurred any penalties for not completing 

tasks within deadlines.  More than 1,462 milestones 

have been satisfactorily completed as prescribed 

by these enforcement actions on, or ahead  

of, schedule.  

During FY 05, EPA representatives met with 

the Department to discuss the status of the First 

Partial Consent Decree (FPCD) and Second and Final 

Partial Consent Decree (SFPCD). The Department 

presented its many accomplishments during a 

comprehensive program presentation.  In addition, 

EPA staff conducted a field inspection of the 

Central District Wastewater Treatment Plant and an 

extensive review of historical files and documents 

compiled by the Department pertaining to the FPCD 

and SFPCD.  EPA representatives subsequently 

expressed their approval of the progress made in 

complying with the many requirements stipulated in 

the consent decrees and referred to the Department 

as a “model utility.”  

The CD/SA program is divided into three  

major sub-programs:  the Wastewater Treatment 

Expansion Program, the Pump Station Improve-

ment Program and the Infiltration and Inflow  

Reduction Program.

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Expansion Program

The last project under the current program was 

completed during FY 05.  As part of this program, 
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the Department has been able to replace potable 

water usage at its wastewater treatment plants 

with effluent reuse.  Valuable drinking water is 

thus conserved by using reclaimed water in 

several wastewater treatment plant processes, 

as well as the landscape irrigation system at two 

of the Department’s wastewater treatment plants  

and at Florida International University’s Biscayne 

Bay Campus.

Pump Station  

Improvement Program

The Pump Station Improvement Program (PSIP) 

was created to evaluate and improve the operation 

and transmission capacity of the 992 wastewater 

pump stations under the control of the Miami-Dade 

Water and Sewer Department.  Projects include 

sewer pump station refurbishing, installation of 

new pumps, electrical upgrades and the installation 

of new force mains.  To date, 583 pump station 

projects and 223 force main projects have  

been completed.  

In FY 05, an integrated web-based PSIP 

Management database was launched for interactive 

project monitoring, cost and schedule control, 

enhanced communications and versatile reporting.  

This mini-version of a project management 

collaboration tool, designed by CD/SA staff, provides 

project participants with proven tools, resources and 

processes enabling them to successfully complete 

many simultaneous, complex projects in accordance 

with stipulated deadlines.  

Infiltration and Inflow  

(I & I) Reduction Program

The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 

continues to perform sanitary sewer evaluation 

surveys on more than 15 million feet of gravity 

collection main lines.  I & I was reduced by 

approximately 11 MGD during FY 05, resulting 

in a reduction of more than 147 MGD since the 

beginning of the program.

In addition, the Department continues to 

decrease the frequency of sanitary sewer overflows.  

Although the I & I Program has been successful, 

there is still some elevated flow during and after 

major rain events.  The Department has committed 

more than $17 million to the Lateral Pilot Program 

to address these peak flows.  

The Lateral Pilot Program is designed to 

determine if leaks in sanitary sewer laterals 

contribute to peak flows.  As part of the program, the 

Department has conducted an in-depth inspection 

of 52 basins that exhibited high flows during and 

after heavy rain events.  The main line inspections 

and subsequent repairs have been completed, as 
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have televised inspections of 1,600 service laterals.  

The service laterals are now being pressure tested 

to identify those needing repair.  

Disinfection 
Byproducts
The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department’s 

Alexander Orr, Jr. and Hialeah Water Treatment 

Plants were found to be in compliance with EPA 

guidelines established in 1996 for achieving 

maximum levels for Total Trihalomethanes (THMs) 

and Haloacetic Acids (HLAs).

It was determined that the John E. Preston Water 

Treatment Plant needed some modifications in 

order to meet the EPA requirements.  An enhanced 

lime-softening treatment process was installed at 

the plant and came online during FY 05.  The new 

treatment process was designed to reduce the 

amount of naturally occurring organic material in 

raw water pumped from the Biscayne Aquifer to the 

Preston plant.  This reduction, in turn, has helped 

to reduce the amount of byproducts produced as 

a result of the disinfection process.  An additional 

benefit to customers is the reduction in the color 

of the water produced by the Preston plant.  

Water/Wastewater 
Needs Assessment 
Study
A Needs Assessment Study was undertaken to 

evaluate the adequacy of the Department’s water 

and wastewater system – one of the largest in the 

United States – and to support several county-wide 

initiatives aimed at revitalization and development.  

The study identified areas of undersized water mains 

and low water pressure that need to be upgraded in 

order to provide adequate fire protection throughout 

the County.

In 2001, the Department created the Needs 

Assessment Program (NAP) to begin the process of 

addressing key initiatives and deficiencies.  In the four 

years since its inception, a total of $30 million has been 

allocated to this program.  That funding allocation has 

paid for planning, design and construction projects in 

all 13 commission districts.  

In FY 04 under the NAP, 15 project designs were 

completed, four projects were put out for bids, 

construction was started on five projects and two 

projects were completed.

In FY 05 under the NAP, nine project designs 

were completed and/or permitted, four projects 

were put out for bids, seven projects are being 

transferred to start construction, construction was 

started on eight projects and five projects were 

completed.

Rate Increase

The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 

increased its rates for water and sewer services 

to its retail customers, effective immediately after 

the end of FY 05.  Billing for the rate increase for 

wholesale customers is scheduled to take effect 
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in January 2006.  This marks only the second rate 

increase since 1998.  For the typical residential retail 

customer, the increase will be approximately 7.7 

percent; this follows a ten percent rate reduction 

the Department had in 2003.  

The rate increase was recommended by the 

Department’s bond consultant, after an analysis of 

the Department’s projected revenues, expenses, 

debt service, and other requirements.  Despite the 

increase, the Department’s rates remain among 

the lowest in the country.  

Growing with 
Information 
Technology
The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department 

is committed to using the latest and best in 

available information technology in order to carry 

out operations and serve the expanding needs of 

customers.  For functions from researching client 

records to managing assets, the Department has 

sought to create or purchase computer software 

that will significantly raise efficiency levels.

The Customer Information System

In order to continue to offer its customers the best 

in service and to streamline the maintenance and 

use of customer records, the Department upgraded 

this application to PeopleSoft ERM (Enterprise 

Revenue Management) release 8.9.  This upgrade 

was successfully implemented in May 2005.  It 

involved migration from client-server to WEB-based 

technology, and enabled additional functionality, 

some that was implemented during FY 05 and 

others that are planned for FY 06.  

After making online payments of their water 

and sewer bills available to customers during the 

previous fiscal year, the Department began to allow 

customers to pay their bills with a credit card during 

FY 05.  This convenience was added after customers 

indicated they wanted it.  

Customers were also able to begin receiving 

their bills electronically during FY 05.  This feature 

includes a direct link to a web page where customers 

can pay their bills.  Additionally, customers can now 

enroll in the automatic debit program, in which 

their water and sewer bills are paid automatically 

from their checking or savings account each  

billing period.  

During FY 06 the Department expects to 

further expand its online services to include email 

bill notification, as well as to provide additional 

services through the recently upgraded Interactive 

Voice Response system.

The Enterprise Resource  

Planning Project

The Department and the Miami-Dade Aviation 

Department have partnered in a joint venture under 

the direction of the CIO and the County Manager’s 

Office for the implementation of an Enterprise 

Resource Planning (ERP) system to replace their 

current financial accounting software. The new 
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software is intended to allow for easier control, 

access and management of financial data, and its 

implementation will serve as a pilot for other County 

departments. During FY 05, substantial integration 

work was completed.  The anticipated “Go Live” 

date is in Spring 2006.  

The Enterprise Asset  

Maintenance System

Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department is part 

of a project to implement a centralized system for 

managing County assets.  The software selected 

for the project – Datastream 7i – is expected to help 

County departments manage maintenance and 

repairs for capital assets, facilities and equipment; 

improve inventory processes and resources; and 

provide enhanced reporting capabilities.

The request for proposals for integrator services 

has been written and approved for advertisement.  

It is anticipated that the selection of an integrator 

will be completed by the end of 2006.  The project 

is expected to be completed within 36 months.

Supervisory Control  

and Data Acquisition System

Essential to the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer 

Department’s daily operations is the ability to 

monitor and control its water and wastewater 

functions from a remote location.  The Department’s 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 

system is at the heart of this capability and one of 

the largest of its kind in the country.

The SCADA system, which is particularly 

important in cases of emergency operations and 

as a tool in meeting requirements of the CD/SA 

program, has allowed workers in the Department’s 

24-hour emergency call center to continuously 

oversee the operations at its pump stations.  It 
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has also allowed water and wastewater treatment 

plant operators to control plant functions from 

remote control panels, providing an increased level  

of efficiency.

Nine hundred sixty-five of the Department’s 992 

wastewater pump stations have been retrofitted 

with SCADA monitoring devices.  The Department’s 

North District Wastewater Treatment Plant, its 

Hialeah and John E. Preston Water Treatment Plants, 

and all water wellfields are fully operational in the 

SCADA system.  SCADA is being upgraded at the 

South District Wastewater Treatment Plant, the 

Alexander Orr Water Treatment Plant and the Central 

District Wastewater Treatment Plant, where the 

upgrade is approximately 60 percent complete.  

Community Outreach
The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department’s 

Public Affairs Office sponsors and participates in 

several programs aimed at educating the public 

regarding its operations, under-utilized services and  

water conservation.  

The Department’s water conservation message 

in particular is carried through several media, 

including school presentations and contests, 

programs and public service announcements 

on public television, the distribution of water 

conservation kits, departmental brochures and 

other publications.

In FY 05, the Department implemented its 

new low-flow showerhead exchange program.  

The program provides customers with a new low-

flow showerhead to replace old units.  The low-flow 

varieties are designed to save approximately five 

gallons of water per minute.  Although the low-

flow showerhead exchange program did not begin 

until late in the fiscal year, it has already been very 

successful, with approximately 1,200 showerheads 

exchanged.  The Department partnered with the 

County’s Department of Environmental Resources 

Management (DERM) to offer the showerheads 

at DERM’s popular and well-attended “Adopt-A-

Tree” events.  

Customer Service 
In the spirit of improving customer service, the 

Department began a pilot initiative—called the 

“Pebble Program”—to reward employees who 

delivered excellence to customers.  Employees 

who receive positive feedback from customers 

are initially rewarded with token gifts and awards.  

The more positive feedback an employee receives, 

the more significant the rewards are, which include 

paid time off (administrative leave) and U.S. Savings 

bonds.  The pilot initiative was successful and the 

“Pebble Program” was launched after the end of the 

fiscal year. 

financial  
information
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This portion of the letter of transmittal is further 

discussed in the Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis, found in the financial section of this report, 

and should be read in conjunction with it.

Enterprise Fund
The Department operates as an enterprise fund of 

Miami-Dade County.  As such, the Department funds 

its expenditures through its rates and charges and 

receives no income from ad valorem taxes levied 

by the County.  The Department recommends rates 

annually to provide for anticipated cash outlays for 

operating expenses, as well as capital improvement 

requirements, debt service payments, and operating 

transfers to the County’s General Fund.

Accounting System 
And Budgetary 
Control
As specified in Miami-Dade County Ordinance 93-

134, the Department’s financial accounting system 

is based upon accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).  

Internal accounting controls are an integral part 

of the Department’s management systems and 

are designed to provide reasonable assurance 

that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized  

use or disposition and that records used for 

preparing financial statements and maintaining 

asset accountability are reliable.

To aid in carrying out this responsibility, 

management strives to maintain a system of 

internal accounting controls, which is established 

after weighing the cost of such controls against the 

benefits derived.  Due to the inherent limitations 

of the effectiveness of any system of internal 

accounting controls, management cannot provide 

absolute assurance that the objectives of internal 

accounting controls will be met.

As part of the County’s ongoing efforts to 

employ comprehensive and cost-effective internal 

accounting controls, Miami-Dade County’s internal 

auditing staff reviews the Department’s controls 

and procedures on a continuing basis.  The County’s 

Director of Audit and Management Services reports 

to the County Manager, providing the independence 

necessary for objective auditing and reporting on 

Department affairs.

The Board of  County Commissioners 

approves the Department’s annual budget for its 

recommended rates, expenses and capital outlays.  

An analysis of revenue and operating expenses 

for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 is 

provided in the financial section of this report.

The Department controls current expenses at 

both the functional and operating division levels.  

financial  
information
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Through the Department’s management reporting 

system, which includes responsibility centers, 

division managers are responsible for budgetary 

items that are controllable at their organizational 

levels. Since all expenses are controllable at 

some level, this dual monitoring of expenses  

serves to strengthen overall budgetary and 

management controls.

Operating Revenues 
And Expenses
Operating revenues and expenses for fiscal 

years 2003, 2004 and 2005 are shown in the  

following graph.

Capital Improvements
The following graph presents a summary of 

capital improvements for fiscal years 2003, 2004  

and 2005.
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securities.  Investments are competitively bid 

among banks and investment brokers enabling 

the Department to obtain the best interest rates 

available in the market.  A summary and comparison 

of cash management activity for fiscal years ended 

September 30, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (dollars 

in thousands):

2005 2004 

Average portfolio 
balance

$690,871 $679,955

Average  
investment yield 2.5% 1.8%

Interest earned on 
investments $17,388 $12,138

Risk Management
The Department maintains a self-insurance program 

for general liability and automobile liability exposures.  

Funding for this program is based on an actuarial 

study performed by consultants.  The Department 

also participates in the County’s self-insurance 

programs for workers’ compensation and health 

and life insurance.  Insurance is maintained with 

independent carriers for all other risks of loss.

Cash Management
The Department pools all cash and investments, 

with the exception of certain investments which 

are required to be held in trust and escrow 

accounts under the terms of bond ordinances and  

loan agreements.

Pooled investments are made pursuant to Florida 

Statutes and resolutions of the Board of County 

Commissioners and consist of U.S. government 

and agency securities, commercial paper, bankers’ 

acceptances and repurchase agreements which 

are collateralized by U.S. government and agency 
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other information
Independent Audit
The accompanying financial statements have been 

audited by the Department’s independent auditors, 

Rachlin, Cohen & Holtz, LLP, and their report on the 

financial statements resulting from their audit is 

included in the financial section of this report.  

Awards
Certificate of Achievement for 

Excellence in Financial Reporting 

The Government Finance Officers Association of 

the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 

a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting to the Department for its 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal 

year ended September 30, 2004.  The Certificate of 

Achievement is a prestigious national award that 

recognizes conformance with the highest standards 

for preparation of state and local government 

financial reports.  

In order to be awarded a Certificate of 

Achievement, a government unit must publish 

an easily readable and efficiently organized 

comprehensive annual financial report, whose 

contents conform to program standards.  Such report 

must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 

principles and applicable legal requirements.  

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period 

of one year only.  The Department has received a 

Certificate of Achievement for the past 23 fiscal 

years.  We believe our current report continues to 

conform to the Certificate of Achievement program 

requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.  

American Society for Quality, South 

Florida Section 1510 – Superior 

Teamwork Award

The American Society for Quality, South Florida 

Section 1510, recognized the Miami-Dade Water and 

Sewer Department’s POWER Efficiency Program for 

Superior Teamwork at the 15th Annual Performance 

Excellence Showcase.  This event featured 

numerous successful improvement projects 

showcased through storyboard presentations 

from both the private and public sector in South 

Florida, including Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm 

Beach counties.  

The POWER Efficiency Program’s storyboard 

presentations highlighted some of the program’s 

achievements such as $25 million in efficiency 

savings, four consecutive gainsharing bonuses for 

WASD employees, improved operational efficiency 

and no rate increase for WASD customers for six 

consecutive years.
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Winner, Drinking Water Taste Test, 

Florida Section of the American 

Water Works Association (FS/

AWWA) Region 7

For the second year in a row, the Miami-Dade Water 

and Sewer Department won the FS/AWWA Region 

7 (Miami-Dade and Monroe counties) Drinking Water 

Taste Test.  The Department beat out the City of North 

Miami Beach, the City of North Miami, the Florida 

Keys, Homestead and the City of Florida City to 

represent the region in the statewide competition.  

The Drinking Water Taste Test is sponsored by 

FS/AWWA in an effort to educate consumers about 

water-related issues and raise awareness about 

water conservation.

National Association of County 

Information Officers (NACIO) 

Excellence Competition Award 

– Superior 

The Department’s Public Affairs section was 

presented an Excellence Competition Award – 

Superior by NACIO for its customer information 

booklet titled “All you need to know.”  

NACIO is an affiliate of the National Association 

of Counties.  The organization, which was founded 

in 1966, has several hundred members who work 

many of the 3,066 counties, boroughs and parishes 

across the United States.  

The 2004 Florida Water and Pollution 

Control Operators Association 

(FWPCOA) Safety Award

The Department received the 2004 Safety Award 

from FWPCOA.  The award is given to utilities with 

an outstanding safety record.  

FWPCOA is an organization whose members 

are involved in the production, treatment and 

distribution of drinking water; the collection, 

treatment and disposal of wastewater; and/or the 

collection and treatment of stormwater.  

The 2004 National Association of 

Clean Water Agencies’ (NACWA) 

Peak Performance Awards 

In 2004, two of the Department’s wastewater 

treatment plants won NACWA Peak Performance 

Awards.  The Central District Plant won a Gold award 

for the second year in a row, while the North District 

Plant won a Silver Award.  

NACWA’s Peak Performance Awards program 

recognizes NACWA member agency facilities for 

excellence in wastewater treatment as measured 

by their compliance with their National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits.  Gold 

awards are presented to facilities that consistently 

meet all NPDES permit limits during a calendar year; 

Silver awards are presented to facilities that have had 

no more than five NPDES permit violations during 

a calendar year. 
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OVER VIEW

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an in troduction to the financial

statements of the Mi ami-Dade Water and Sewer Department (the Department) for the fis cal year ended

Sep tem ber 30, 2005. The MD&A pres ents man age ment’s ex am i na tion and anal y sis of the De part ment’s fi-

nancial con dition and per formance. It should be read in con junction with the financial information of the

transmittal let ter in the introductory sec tion and the financial state ments in the fi nancial sec tion of this

report. The financial state ments in clude bal ance sheets; state ments of rev enues, ex penses and changes in

net as sets;  state ments of cash flows; and notes to the fi nancial state ments.

The balance sheets present the financial po sition of the De partment as of a specific date.   It pro vides in for-

mation about the na ture and amount of resources (assets) and ob ligations (liabilities), with net as sets be ing

the difference be tween as sets and li abilities. In creases or de creases in net as sets may serve as a useful in di-

ca tor of whether the fi nan cial po si tion of the De part ment is im prov ing or de te ri o rat ing.

The statements of rev enues, expenses, and changes in net as sets present information show ing how the De -

partment’s net as sets changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net as sets are re ported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs which might not co incide with the timing of the related

cash flows.

The statements of cash flows present the cash activities of the De partment segregated in the following four

ma jor cat e go ries: op er at ing, non-capital fi nanc ing, cap i tal and re lated fi nanc ing, and in vest ing. This state-

ment also presents the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the De partment.

The notes to the financial statements pro vide required dis closures and other in formation that are essential to

a full un derstanding of data provided in the statements.

FI NAN CIAL PO SI TION

A sum mary of the De partment’s net as sets and related changes for the fis cal years ended Sep tember 30,

2005, 2004 and 2003 is shown below.  Total net assets as of Sep tember 30, 2005, were $2.1 billion.  The

Department’s to tal net as sets de creased by $7.5 million, or by 0.4%, from last year. The decrease was pri-

marily due to the utilization of cash and other cur rent as sets to meet operations. The un restricted por tion of

net assets (available to meet on going and future ob ligations of the De partment) had an increase of $21.3

million, or 12.6%, from fis cal year 2004.

Operating and maintenance ex penses in creased by $25.5 million, or by 10.9% from the previous year. An

increased em ployee level of com pensation with related fringe ben efits, util ities, chem icals and fuel ex -

penses made up the ma jority of the in crease.

(in thousands)

SUMMARY OF NET AS SETS 2005 2004 2003
Current and Other As sets $  958,914 $1,008,886 $1,041,813
Cap i tal As sets, net  2,958,020  2,965,096  2,960,469
To tal As sets  3,916,934  3,973,982  4,002,282

Long-term Li a bil i ties 1,634,956 1,681,362 1,690,817
Other li a bil i ties    173,294    176,470    165,671

To tal Li a bil i ties 1,808,250 1,857,832  1,856,488
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2005 2004 2003
Net As sets:
Invested in capital as sets, net of debt 1,670,373 1,640,651 1,585,586
Re stricted 247,947 306,469 373,628
Un re stricted     190,364     169,030     186,580

Total Net Assets $2,108,684 $2,116,150 $2,145,794

SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET AS SETS

Wa ter op er at ing rev e nues $   170,905 $   170,091 $  154,756 
Wastewater op er at ing rev e nues 221,055 215,482 207,346
In ter est In come 22,487 8,785  26,153 
Other non op er at ing rev e nues           806           326       2,330

To tal rev e nues    415,253    394,684   390,585

Op er at ing & main te nance ex penses 258,379 232,913 218,391
De pre ci a tion 118,261 122,800 117,780
In ter est ex pense 72,405 72,781 75,473
Other non op er at ing ex penses          871             871 876
Transfers to County’s Gen eral Fund      27,701      37,899      39,996

To tal ex penses    477,617    467,264    452,516

Loss be fore con tri bu tions (62,364)    (72,580) (61,931)
Cap i tal Con tri bu tions      54,898      42,936     47,500

Decrease in net as sets      (7,466)  (29,644) (14,431)
Net assets at be ginning of year  2,116,150  2,145,794  2,160 225
Net as sets at end of year $2,108,684 $2,116,150 $2,145,794

CAP I TAL AS SETS

The fol low ing ta ble sum ma rizes the De part ment’s cap i tal as sets, net of ac cu mu lated de pre ci a tion, for the

fiscal years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands). Total cap ital as sets decreased by

$7.1  million, or 0.2%, over the pre vious year. This decrease is due to capital ad ditions, net of plant retire-

ments of  $97.5 million, offset by $104.6 million net increase in accumulated de preciation. Ad ditional in-

formation in changes in cap ital as sets can be found in Note 3 to the financial statements.

2005 2004 2003
Land $    35,020 $     34,774 $    34,519 
Struc tures and im prove ments 2,280,363 2,241,033 2,259,057
Equip ment 311,233 333,607 326,558
Construction work in prog ress     331,404     355,682     340,335
To tal cap i tal as sets $2,958,020 $2,965,096 $2,960,469

This year’s ma jor ex pen di tures in cap i tal as sets in cluded:

Wa ter pro jects:

• Wellfields ($2.5 mil lion)

• Transmission mains, meters and services ($2.4 million)

• Treat ment fa cil i ties ($3.3 mil lion)

Wastewater projects:

• Treat ment fa cil i ties ($16.4 mil lion)

• Force mains ($11.9 million)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DE PARTMENT
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• Pump stations ($7.3 million)

• In fil tra tion and in flow re duc tion pro gram ($4.8 mil lion)

• Gravity mains and services ($3.6 million)

• System wide improvements ($3.3 million)

Budgeted cap ital ex penditures for fiscal year 2006 amount to $233.6 million and in clude $91.7 million in

water pro jects and $141.9 million in wastewater pro jects.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt outstanding (including current por tion) at Sep tember 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is presented

in the following table (in thousands). The year 2005 shows a decrease of $36.9 million from the previous

year.

2005 2004 2003
Rev e nue Bonds $1,493,589 $1,523,497 $1,553,293
State Loan Ob li ga tions 137,853 144,618 146,699
Notes payable            345            539            754

Total long-term debt $1,631,787 $1,668,654 $1,700,746

During 2005 an amendment to the  state re volving fund loan agreements increased the re lated commitments

by $3.4 million. Draws made on state re volving fund commitments and re corded as debt, in cluding capital-

ized in terest, were $3.8 million in 2005. Current long-term debt maturities were met in the amount of $34.5 

million. Ad ditional long-term debt details can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

In September 2005, the De partment refunded part of its Dade County Water and Sewer System Rev enue

Bonds, Series 1995 by issuing the Water and Sewer System Rev enue Refunding Variable Rate De mand

Bond, Series 2005, taking ad vantage of low interest rates. By issuing these bonds, the De partment saved

approximately $31.8 million in net pres ent value savings in in terest costs.

The De partment is re quired to maintain rates and charges suf ficient to meet two sets of debt ser vice cov er-

age requirements. First, adjusted an nual net op erating revenues must equal or ex ceed 110 per cent of the

debt service on rev enue bonds. Primary debt service cov erage ratio for the year was 1.52, which is greater

than the re quired level of 1.10.  Second, ad justed net op erating revenues, after pay ment of rev enue bond

debt service, must be at least equal to 115 per cent of the debt service for the state loan ob ligations. The De -

partment met the secondary debt service cov erage with a ratio of 2.9, which is greater than the required ra -

tio of 1.15.

RE QUEST FOR IN FOR MA TION

Questions con cerning this report or requests for ad ditional information should be di rected to Dana M.

Moss, Sr.,  As sistant Di rector - Finance at 786-552-8104 or at his office lo cated at 3071 S.W. 38th Ave.,

Miami, Florida 33146.

MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DE PARTMENTMANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
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September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $      32,625 $      65,822 
Investments      108,454        96,537 
Accounts receivable
(net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of
$24.5 million in 2005 and $23.1 million in 2004)       75,098        75,013 
Inventory of materials and supplies       25,001        22,402 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents      85,924        91,957 

Total current assets     327,102       351,731 

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents       36,285       157,267 
Investments      577,466       481,140 
Contracts receivable         412           176 

Total restricted assets     614,163       638,583 

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred debt issue costs, net       15,879        15,209 
Other deferred charges, net       1,770         3,363 

Total other assets      17,649        18,572 

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land       35,020        34,774 
Structures and improvements    3,199,845     3,092,038 
Equipment     769,657       755,902 

Utility plant in service before depreciation    4,004,522     3,882,714 

Less accumulated depreciation   1,377,906     1,273,300 

Net utility plant in service    2,626,616     2,609,414 

Construction work in progress     331,404       355,682 

Total capital assets   2,958,020     2,965,096 

Total noncurrent assets   3,589,832     3,622,251 

Total assets  $ 3,916,934  $ 3,973,982
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(Continued) September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM UNRESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $      46,724 $      46,155 
Customer and developer deposits       20,104        17,271 
Current portion of long-term debt        7,696         7,477 
Current portion of swap option          -           888 
Accrued interest payable          135           351 
Rebatable arbitrage earnings          217           541 
Liability for compensated absences        8,947         8,279 
Other liabilities       4,573         3,552 

Total current liabilities (payable from unrestricted current assets)      88,396        84,514 

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses       10,284        12,502 
Retainage payable        4,138         4,468 
Current portion of long-term debt       34,612        27,021 
Accrued interest payable       33,090        41,824 
Liability for self-insurance       2,774         6,141 

Total current liabilities (payable from restricted current assets)      84,898        91,956 

Total current liabilities     173,294       176,470 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revenue bonds payable, net    1,462,079     1,499,782 
State loan obligations, net      127,279       134,029 
Notes payable, net          121           345 
Liability for self-insurance        1,671         5,095 
Liability for compensated absences       19,247        17,552 
Liability for swap option          -        24,559 
Deferred revenues      24,559           -

Total noncurrent liabilities   1,634,956     1,681,362 

Total liabilities   1,808,250     1,857,832 

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt    1,670,373     1,640,651 
Restricted for:
Capital projects      113,411       177,600 
Debt service      134,536       128,869 
Unrestricted     190,364       169,030 

Total net assets   2,108,684     2,116,150

Total liabilities and net assets  $ 3,916,934  $ 3,973,982
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For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water $    170,905 $     170,091 
Wastewater     221,055       215,482 

Total operating revenues     391,960       385,573 

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:
Water source of supply        5,710         5,110
Water power and pumping        1,604         2,257 
Water purification       50,221        40,660 
Water transmission and distribution       21,900        21,452 
Wastewater collection system       15,582        14,534 
Wastewater pumping       26,196        23,838 
Wastewater treatment       55,206        48,851 
Customer accounting        5,992         6,867 
Customer service       16,712        15,638 
General and administrative      59,256        53,706 

Total operating and maintenance expenses     258,379       232,913 

Operating income before depreciation      133,581       152,660 

DEPRECIATION     118,261       122,800 

Operating income       15,320        29,860 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income       22,487         8,785 
Interest expense      (72,405)       (72,781)
Amortization of debt issue costs         (871)          (871)
Operating grants          114           326 
Other revenues          692           -
Transfers to County’s General Fund     (27,701)       (37,899)

Loss before contributions      (62,364)       (72,580)

Capital contributions      54,898        42,936 

Decrease in net assets       (7,466)       (29,644)

Net assets at beginning of year   2,116,150     2,145,794 

Net assets at end of year  $ 2,108,684  $ 2,116,150
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For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $    393,742 $     388,595 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services     (124,733)      (120,735)
Cash paid to employees for services    (138,514)      (123,570)

Net cash provided by operating activities     130,495       144,290 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants received          -           165 
Transfers to County’s General Fund     (27,701)       (37,899)

Net cash used in non-capital financing activities     (27,701)       (37,734)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bond issues, loan agreements and notes        3,675        35,710 
Principal payments - bonds, loans and notes      (34,516)       (40,887)
Interest paid     (100,800)       (74,825)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment          307           -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets      (90,774)      (106,846)
Contributions received      44,490        36,066 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities    (177,618)      (150,782)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities     (646,831)      (373,911)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment securities      539,330       334,692 
Interest on investments      22,113        15,399 

Net cash used in investing activities     (85,388)       (23,820)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents     (160,212)       (68,046)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     315,046       383,092 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $   154,834  $   315,046 
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(Continued) For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $      15,320 $      29,860 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation      118,261       122,800 
Provision for uncollectible accounts        1,306         2,297 
Amortization of deferred charges          296           296 
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable       (1,278)        (7,468)
Inventory of materials and supplies       (2,599)        (2,324)
Other deferred charges        1,295           449 
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses          569         4,302 
Customer and developer deposits          905           932 
Accrued interest payable         (174)          (210)
Liability for compensated absences        2,363         2,702 
Other liabilities        1,022          (567)
Liability for self-insurance      (6,791)        (8,779)

Net cash provided by operating activities  $   130,495  $   144,290 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Property, plant and equipment contributions were received in amounts of $10.1 million and $7.0 million in fiscal 
years 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The decrease in the fair value of investments were $1.9 million and $8.8 million in fiscal years 2005
and 2004, respectively.

$295.2 million of Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Variable Rate Demand
Bonds, Series 2005  were issued to refund $295.2 million of Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1995.

 2005  2004 
(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR:
Unrestricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents $      32,625 $      65,822 
Restricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents       85,924        91,957 
Restricted Noncurrent Cash and Cash Equivalents      36,285       157,267 

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $   154,834  $   315,046 
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 AND 2004

1. SUMMARY  OF
SIG NIF I CANT AC COUNTING POL ICIES

BASIS OF AC COUNTING AND PRESENTATION

The Mi ami-Dade Water and Sewer Department (the De-

partment) func tions as a self-supporting gov ernmental en -

terprise fund of Miami-Dade County, Florida (the

County). An enterprise fund is used to account for the fi -

nancing of services to the gen eral pub lic on a continuing

basis with costs re covered primarily through user charges.

Accordingly, its fi nancial state ments have been prepared

on the accrual ba sis of ac counting. The Department issues

a separate com pre hen sive an nual fi nan cial re port and its

financial statements are combined in the County's com-

pre hen sive an nual fi nan cial re port.

The ac com pa ny ing fi nan cial state ments com bine the ac-

counts of both the Water and Wastewater Systems to pro -

vide mean ing ful in for ma tion with re spect to the

Department, with all transactions of the De partment ac -

counted for as one en terprise fund. All sig nificant in ter-

system ac counts and transactions have been elimi nated.

During fiscal year 2002, the De partment adopted the pro -

vi sions of the fol low ing Gov ern men tal Ac count ing Stan-

dards Board (GASB) Statements: No. 34, Ba sic Fi nan cial

State ments - and Man age ment’s Dis cus sion and Anal y sis -

for State and Lo cal Governments; No. 37, Ba sic Fi nan cial

State ments-and Man age ment’s Dis cus sion and Anal y-

sis-for State and Lo cal Governments: Om nibus, an

amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34; and

No. 38, Cer tain Fi nan cial State ment Note Dis clo sures.

These GASB state ments re quired the pre sentation of a

Man age ment’s Dis cus sion and Analy sis which pre cedes

the financial statements, in addition to several changes to

the fi nancial state ments such as: (1) the clas sification of

the Equity section of the bal ance sheet into Net As sets

with cat egories of Invested in capital as sets, net of re lated

debt, Re stricted and Unrestricted; (2) the statement of rev-

enues, expenses and changes in net as sets for matted to re -

port changes in net as sets in place of changes in retained

earnings; and (3) ad ditional note disclosures to the finan-

cial state ments.

AP PLI CA TION OF FASB STAN DARDS

GASB Statement No. 20, Ac count ing and Fi nan cial Re-

porting for Proprietary Funds and Other Gov ernmental

En ti ties that use Pro pri etary Fund Ac count ing, offers the

op tion of fol low ing all Fi nan cial Ac count ing Stan dards

Board (FASB) standards issued after No vember 30, 1989, 

un less the lat ter conflict with or con tra dict GASB pro -

nouncements, or not following FASB standards issued

after such date. The Department elected the option not to

follow FASB standards.

OP ER ATING/NON OP ER AT ING REV E NUES AND EXPENSES

Operating rev enues and ex penses are those that re sult

from pro viding water and wastewater ser vices. Non oper-

at ing rev e nues and ex penses in clude cap i tal, fi nanc ing,

investing and other activities not re lated to the pro vision

of water and wastewater ser vices.

REV E NUE REC OG NI TION

All wa ter and wastewater reve nues are rec ognized when

the re lated serv ices are provided. Unbilled re ceivables

have been es timated and ac crued as reve nue from the date

of last reading of the meters based on the billing cycle.

Un billed ac counts re ceiv able were ap prox i mately $26.6

million and $26.4 million as of September 30, 2005 and

2004, re spec tively.

CAP I TAL AS SETS

Property acquired with an initial individual cost of $1,000

or more and  an es timated use ful life in excess of one year

is capitalized at cost. Ma jor outlays for construction of

cap i tal as sets and im prove ments are cap i tal ized at cost.

Expenditures for maintenance and re pairs are expensed as

in curred. Prop erty con tri bu tions re ceived from mu nic i-

palities are re corded as cap ital as sets by the De partment at

the ac qui si tion cost to the mu nic i pal ity. Prop erty con trib-

uted in aid of construction is capitalized at its es timated

fair mar ket value on the date received.

Annualized de pre ci a tion ex pense, ex pressed as a per cent

of depreciable cap ital as sets, was 3.0% and 3.2% for

the fiscal years ended Sep tember 30, 2005 and 2004, re -

spec tively. The De part ment uti lizes the com pos ite

straight-line de pre ci a tion method with nor mal re tire-

ments charged to ac cu mu lated de pre ci a tion, and no gain
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or loss is recognized on re tirements. As sets with a change

in estimated life are de preciated based on net book value

over the re maining life of the as set.  Estimated use ful lives

of capital assets in ser vice are as follows:

   Water      Wastewater
Sys tem Sys tem

(Years)
Struc tures and

im prove ments 50 15-50
Equip ment 3-30  3-20
Trans mis sion mains and

ac ces so ries 50-100   25-100

IN VEST MENTS

In ac cordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Ac count ing

and Fi nancial Re porting for Certain In vestments and for

Ex ter nal In vest ment Pools, the Department has opted to

report money market and non-participating in vestments,

with re maining ma turities of one year or less at the time of

pur chase, at am or tized cost which ap prox i mates mar ket.

Investments are car ried at fair value.  The net in crease in

the fair value of in vestments is included as part of interest

in come in the ac com pa ny ing state ments of rev e nues, ex-

penses and changes in net as sets.

IN VEN TORY

Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the lower

of average cost or mar ket.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For pur poses of the statements of cash flows, the Depart-

ment considers all highly liquid pooled in vestments with a 

maturity of three months or less when pur chased to be

cash equivalents.

IN TER EST ON IN DEBT ED NESS

Interest is charged to expense as incurred except for in ter-

est re lated to borrowings used for con struction pro jects

which is capitalized, net of in terest earned on con struction

funds bor rowed. In ter est in curred dur ing the fis cal years

ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 was $83.5 million

and $85.1 million, re spectively. Of these amounts, $11.1

million and $12.3 mil lion were capitalized in fis cal years

2005 and 2004, respectively, net of in terest earned on

construction funds from tax-exempt borrowings of $2.4

million and $2.2  million in fiscal years 2005 and 2004,

re spec tively.

For interest rate swap agreements, the amounts recorded

in the fi nancial state ments are the net in terest ex pense

along with amortization of fees paid or re ceived re sulting

from these agreements. The De partment re corded a li abil-

ity for the swap op tion and will amortize the upfront pay -

ment shown as net of interest ex pense in the financial

state ments.

During fiscal year 2003 the De partment adopted the pro -

visions of GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2003-1 (T.B.

2003-1), Dis clo sure Re quire ments for De riv a tives Not

Reported at Fair Value on the Statement of Net Assets,

which re quires new disclosure requirements re lated to de-

rivatives such as in terest rate swap agreements and swap

options.

BOND DISCOUNT, PREMIUM AND IS SUANCE COSTS

Discounts and pre miums on bonds and notes payable are

amortized using the straight-line method over the life of

the related bond issuances or term of the notes since the

re sults are not sig nif i cantly dif fer ent from the in ter est

method of amortization.  Bond issuance costs are cap ital-

ized and amortized over the life of the bonds in a manner

similar to discounts and premiums.

CAP I TAL CON TRI BU TIONS

Ef fec tive Oc to ber 1, 2000, the De part ment adopted

GASB Statement No. 33, Ac count ing and Fi nan cial

Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, which re -

quires rec og ni tion of ex ter nal cap i tal con tri bu tions to

pro pri etary funds as rev e nues, not con trib uted cap i tal.

GRANTS FROM GOV ERNMENT AGEN CIES

The De part ment rec ords grants when all ap pli ca ble el i gi -

bility requirements have been met. This nor mally oc curs

as amounts are ex pended and be come re imbursable from

the granting agency.

PEN SION PLAN

The Department has adopted the pro visions, per taining to

pen sion trans ac tions, of GASB Tech ni cal Bul le tin No.

2004-2, Rec og ni tion of Pen sion Ben e fit Ex pen di tures /
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Ex penses and Li a bil i ties by Cost Shar ing Em ploy ers (“the 

Bulletin”). The adop tion of the Bulletin did not have an

impact on the fi nancial state ments of the Department. The

provisions of the Bulletin per taining to OPEB transac-

tions will be applied simultaneously with the adop tion of

GASB Statement 45 Ac count ing and Fi nan cial Re port ing

by Em ployers for Postemployment Ben efits Other Than

Pen sions.

COM PEN SATED AB SENCES

The De part ment ac counts for com pen sated ab sences

by ac cru ing a li a bil ity for em ploy ees' com pen sa tion

for fu ture ab sences according to the guidelines of

GASB Statement No. 16, Ac count ing for Com pen -

sated Ab sences.

COST AL LO CA TION

Certain en gineering overhead and other costs are gen -

er ally al lo cated to cap i tal pro jects and op er at ing ex-

penses us ing stan dard rates de vel oped by in de pend ent

consultants.  The rate is based on var ious allocation

bases which bear reasonable re lation with the type of

al lo ca ble ex pen di ture.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The prepa ra tion of fi nan cial state ments in con for mity

with ac count ing prin ci ples gen er ally ac cepted in the

United States of Amer ica (GAAP) re quires management

to make es timates and as sumptions that af fect the re ported

amounts of assets and liabilities and dis closure of contin-

gent as sets and li abilities at the date of the financial state -

ments and the re ported amounts of revenues and

ex pen di tures/ex penses dur ing the re port ing pe ri od. Ac-

tual results could differ from those estimates.

2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 
IN VEST MENTS

The Department pools all cash, cash equivalents and in-

vestments, with the exception of cer tain amounts which

are required to be held in trust and escrow accounts un der

the terms of bond or dinances and loan agreements. Vari-

ous self-balancing ac count groups are par ticipants in such

pooling, sharing on a pro-rata ba sis in the pooled earn ings,

ac cord ing to their re spec tive av er age monthly bal ances.

DE POS ITS

The carrying amounts of the De partment's lo cal de posits

were $13.5 million and $14.7 million as of September 30,

2005 and 2004, respectively. The bank bal ances at lo cal

depositories were $22.9 million and $24.4 million as of

September 30, 2005 and 2004, re spectively, con sisting of

demand de posit ac counts only.  All de posits are fully in-

sured by Fed eral De pos i tory In sur ance and a mul ti ple fi-

nan cial in sti tu tion col lat eral pool re quired by Chap ter

280 Florida Statutes, “Florida Se curity for Pub lic De -

posits Act”. Un der the Act, all qualified pub lic de posito-

ries are re quired to pledge el igible col lateral hav ing a

market value equal to or greater than the av erage daily or

monthly balance of all pub lic de posits, times the de posi-

tory's col lateral pledg ing level. The pledging level may

range from 50% to 125% de pending upon the de pository's

fi nan cial con di tion and es tab lish ment pe riod. All col lat-

eral must be de posited with a State-approved fi nancial in-

sti tu tion. Any losses to pub lic de positors are cov ered by

ap pli ca ble de posit in sur ance, sale of se cu ri ties pledged

as col lateral and, if nec essary, as sessments against other

qualified pub lic de positories of the same type as the de-

pos i tory in de fault.

Cash on hand and cash held by other par ties as of Sep tem-

ber 30, 2005 were ap proximately $150,100.

IN VEST MENTS 

The Department's in vestments at September 30, 2005, are

shown in the following table (in thousands).

Fair Value
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation $103,429
Federal Home Loan Bank 141,422
Federal Farm Credit Bank 85,494
Fed eral Na tional Mort gage As so ci a tion 99,748
Fed eral Ag ri cul tural Mort gage Cor po ra tion 11,336
SBA 74,825
Trea sury Notes 30,991
Com mer cial Pa per   199,300
Guar an teed In vest ment Con tracts:

MBIA 25,094
SARCO 21,788
AIGMF     33,702
      Total in vestments $827,129

CREDIT RISK

The County’s Investment Pol icy (the Policy), min imizes

credit risk by restricting au thorized in vestments to: Local
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Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any in tergov-

ern men tal in vest ment pool au tho rized pur su ant to the

Florida Interlocal Co op er a tion Act; Se cu ri ties and Ex-

change Commission (SEC) registered money market

funds with the highest credit quality rating from a na tion-

ally rec og nized rat ing agency; in ter est-bear ing time de-

pos its or sav ings ac counts in qual i fied pub lic de pos i to ries,

pursuant to Florida Statutes §280.02, which are defined as

banks, sav ings bank, or sav ings as so ci a tion or ga nized un-

der the laws of the United States with an of fice in this state

that is authorized to receive de posits, and has de posit in -

surance un der the pro visions of the Fed eral De posit In sur-

ance Act; direct obligations of the United States Treasury;

fed eral agen cies and in stru men tal i ties; se cu ri ties of, or

other in terests in, any open-end or closed-end manage-

ment-type in vestment company or in vestment trust regis-

tered un der the In vestment Company Act of 1940,

provided that the portfolio is limited to the ob ligations of

the United States gov ernment or any agency or instrumen-

tality thereof and to re purchase agreements fully col later-

alized by such United States gov ernment ob ligations, and

provided that such in vestment company or in vestment

trust takes de livery of such collateral ei ther di rectly or

through an au tho rized cus to dian; Com mer cial pa per of

prime quality with a stated maturity of 270 days  or  less

from the date of its issuance, which has the high est letter

and nu merical rating as pro vided for by at least one na-

tion ally rec og nized rat ing ser vice; Bank ers Ac cep tan ces

which have a stated maturity of 180 days or less from the

date of its issuance, and have the highest letter and nu mer-

ical rating as pro vided for  by at least one nationally recog-

nized rat ing service, and are drawn on and ac cepted by

commercial banks and which are el igible for pur chase by

the Fed eral Re serve Bank; In vestments in Re purchase

Agree ments (“Repos”) col lat er al ized by se cu ri ties au tho -

rized by this policy. Se curities Lending - Se curities or in -

vestments pur chased or held un der the pro visions of this

section may be loaned to securities dealers or financial

institutions provided the loan is collateralized by cash or

securities having a market value of at least 102 percent of

the market value of the securities loaned upon initiation of

the transaction.

The fol low ing ta ble sum ma rizes the in vest ments by type

and credit ratings at September 30, 2005. 

Credit Rat ing
Fed eral Home Loan Mort gage Cor po ra tion AAA
Federal Home Loan Bank AAA
Federal Farm Credit Bank AAA
Fed eral Na tional Mort gage As so ci a tion AAA
Fed eral Ag ri cul tural Mort gage Cor po ra tion AAA
SBA N/A
Trea sury Notes N/A
Com mer cial Pa per                                                A1/P1

Guaranteed in vestment con tracts (GIC) are not sub ject to

credit rating be cause they are direct con tractual in vest-

ments and are not securities. These GIC pro vide for a

guar an teed re turn on in vest ments over a spec i fied pe riod

of time. 

CUS TO DIAL CREDIT RISK

The Policy re quires that bank deposits be secured per

Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.  This re quires lo cal gov ern-

ments to de posit funds only in financial institutions des ig-

nated as qual i fied pub lic de pos i to ries by the Chief

Financial Officer of the State of Florida and creates the

Pub lic De pos its Trust Fund, a mul ti ple fi nan cial in sti tu-

tion pool with the abil ity to as sess its member fi nancial in -

stitutions for collateral shortfalls if a de fault or in solvency

has occurred.  At September 30, 2005 all of the County’s

bank deposits were in qualified public depositories.

The Policy re quires the ex ecution of a Custodial Safe-

keeping Agreement (CSA) for all pur chased securities

and shall be held for the credit of the County in an account

separate and apart from the as sets of the financial in stitu-

tion.

CON CEN TRA TION OF CREDIT RISK

The Pol icy es tab lishes lim i ta tions on port fo lio com po si -

tion by investment type and by issuer to limit its ex posure

to con centration of credit risk.  The Pol icy pro vides that a

maximum of 30% of the portfolio may be in vested in SEC

registered money market funds with no more than 10% to

any single money market fund; a maximum of 20% of the

port fo lio may be in vested in non-ne go tia ble in ter est bear-

ing time certificates of deposit sav ings accounts with no

more than 5% deposited with any one issuer; a maximum

75% of the to tal port folio may be in vested in federal agen -

cies and instrumentalities; a maximum of 5% of the port-

folio may be in vested in open-end or closed-end funds; a
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maximum of 50% of the portfolio may be in vested in

prime commercial pa per with a max imum of 5% to with

any one issuer; a maximum of 25% of the portfolio may be

invested in bankers ac ceptance with a max imum with any

one issuer; a maximum of 60% of the portfolio may be in -

vested in both com mercial pa per and bankers ac ceptance;

a maximum of 10% of the portfolio may be in vested with

any one in sti tu tion.

As of September 30, 2005 the following issuers held 5%

or more of the in vestment portfolio:

 % of
Port fo lio

Fed eral Home Loan Mort gage Cor po ra tion 13.85
Federal Home Loan Bank 18.94
Federal Farm Credit Bank 11.45
Fed eral Na tional Mort gage As so ci a tion 13.36
SBA 10.02

The above ex cludes in vestments is sued or explicitly guar -

anteed by the U.S. gov ernment and in vestments in mutual

funds and external investments pools.

IN TER EST RATE RISK

The Policy lim its in terest rate risk by requiring the match -

ing of known cash needs and an ticipated net cash outflow

re quire ments; fol low ing his tor i cal spread re la tion ships

be tween dif fer ent se cu rity types and is su ers; eval u at ing

both interest rate fore casts and maturity dates to con sider

short-term market expectations.  The Pol icy re quires that

in vest ments made with cur rent op er at ing funds shall

maintain a weighted average of no longer than 1 year.  In -

vestments for bond re serves, con struction funds and other

non-operating fund shall have a term ap propriate to the

need for funds and in ac cordance with debt covenants.

The Policy lim its the ma turity of an investment to a

maximum of 5 years

As of September 30, 2005 the County had the following

in vest ments with the re spec tive weighted av er age ma tu -

rity in years.

Weighted
Av er age in

   Years
Fed eral Home Loan Mort gage Cor po ra tion 0.68
Federal Home Loan Bank 0.92
Federal Farm Credit Bank 0.74
Federal Na tional Mort gage As so ci a tion 0.72
Fed eral Ag ri cul tural Mort gage Cor po ra tion 0.58
SBA 0.003
Trea sury Notes 0.84
Com mer cial Pa per                                                   0.23

FOR EIGN CUR RENCY RISK

The Policy limits the County’s for eign currency risk by

ex clud ing for eign in vest ments as an in vest ment option.
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3. CAP I TAL AS SETS 
Capital as set ac tivity dur ing fis cal years 2004 and 2005 was as fol lows (in thou sands):

Bal ance       2004 Bal ance       2005 Bal ance
9/30/03 Ad di tions De le tions 9/30/04 Ad di tions De le tions 09/30/05

Cap i tal as sets, not be ing de pre ci ated:

Land $        34,519        255        -      34,774       246       -     35,020 

Construction work in prog ress                      340,335    128,244   (112,897)     355,682   111,489  (135,767)    331,404 

To tal cap i tal as sets, not be ing de pre ci ated         374,854    128,499   (112,897)     390,456   111,735  (135,767)    366,424 

Cap i tal as sets, be ing de pre ci ated:

Struc tures and im prove ments                 3,038,441     59,271     (5,674)   3,092,038   110,268    (2,461)  3,199,845 

Equip ment                                      710,751     53,626     (8,475)     755,902    25,253   (11,498)    769,657 

To tal cap i tal as sets, be ing de pre ci ated       3,749,192    112,897    (14,149)   3,847,940   135,521   (13,959)  3,969,502 

Less ac cu mu lated de pre ci a tion:

Struc tures and im prove ments                  (779,384)    (77,296)      5,675    (851,005)   (70,934)     2,457   (919,482)

Equip ment                                     (384,193)    (45,504)      7,402    (422,295)   (47,328)    11,199   (458,424)

To tal ac cu mu lated de pre ci a tion              (1,163,577)   (122,800)     13,077  (1,273,300)  (118,262)    13,656 (1,377,906)

To tal cap i tal as sets, be ing de pre ci ated, net           2,585,615     (9,903)     (1,072)   2,574,640    17,259      (303)  2,591,596 

To tal cap i tal as sets, net                          $  2,960,469    118,596   (113,969)   2,965,096   128,994  (136,070)  2,958,020 
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4.   RE STRICTED AS SETS
Certain bond or dinances and loan agreements re quire the

Department to es tablish accounts to be used in  accounting

for pro ceeds and collateral pledged as a re sult of the var ious

issues of debt.  In many cases, the ap plicable or dinances re-

fer to the re stricted ac counts as “funds”.  Such accounts are

not “funds” as de fined by the Na tional Council on Gov -

ern men tal Ac count ing (NCGA) Statement  No. 1: Govern-

men tal Ac count ing and Fi nan cial Re porting Prin ci ples

and, therefore, are not funds for financial reporting pur-

poses, but are main tained as separate ac counts. Re stricted as-

sets  at  Sep tember 30, 2005 and 2004 are presented in the

fol low ing ta ble (in thou sands):

2005 2004
Re stricted As sets

Debt Service $170,741 $175,598
Con struc tion 427,636 455,193
Re newal and Re place ment 48,058 70,948
Plant Ex pan sion 48,838 17,565
Self-Insurance       4,814     11,236

To tal As sets $700,087 $730,540

5. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt includes var ious bonds, loans and notes

payable which have been issued or approved by the

County for the improvement of the Department's wa ter

and wastewater in frastructure, and defeasance of out -

standing debt.  Gen eral cov enants, along with debt service

requirements, are disclosed below.  See Note 3, Re stricted

Assets, for a discussion of the accounts used in ac counting

for pro ceeds and collateral pledged as a re sult of the is su-

ance of the var ious forms of debt.

The De part ment's debt in stru ments con tain var i ous cov e -

nants and re strictions, which among other things, (1) pro -

hibit the De partment from tak ing any ac tion that could

jeopardize its tax-exempt status, and (2) re quire the De-

partment to meet cer tain fi nancial tests. Management be -

lieves that the De partment was in com pliance with all such

cov e nants and re stric tions at Sep tem ber 30, 2005.

DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SERIES 1994

On Feb ruary 4, 1994, $431.7 million of Dade County Water

and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1994, with vari-

able in terest rates, were is sued to fi nance capital improve-

ments to the water and wastewater sys tems. The variable

rate is set by the Remarketing Agent (Smith Bar ney

Shearson Inc.) based on the weekly rate the bond is sold

for in that time pe riod.

The Series 1994 Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the

net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due se ri-

ally on the first Wednesday of Oc tober through the year

2022, with semi-annual interest due on the first Wednesday

of April and Oc tober of each year.  Net revenue require-

ments of at least 1.10 times the cur rent year's debt service

requirements were met in fis cal year 2005.

DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SE RIES 1995

On Oc tober 19, 1995, $346.8 million of Dade County Wa-

ter and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1995 were is -

sued to fi nance capital improvements to the water and

wastewater systems. On September 29, 2005, $295.2 mil-

lion of Dade County Water and Sewer System Rev enue Re-

funding Variable Rate De mand Bonds, Se ries 2005 were

issued to re fund the Se ries 1995 Bonds maturing after  Oc -

tober 1, 2011.

The Se ries 1995 Rev e nue Bonds are col lat er al ized by

the net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due

serially on October 1 through the year 2011 with

semi-annual interest due on April 1 and October 1 of

each year.  Net revenue requirements of at least 1.10

times the current year's debt service re quirements were

met in fis cal year 2005.

DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SE RIES 1997

On Jan uary 30, 1997, $437.2 million of Dade County Wa-

ter and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1997 were is -

sued to fi nance capital improvements to the water and

wastewater sys tems.

The Series 1997 Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the

net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due se -

rially on October 1 through the year 2026 with

semi-annual interest due on April 1 and October 1 of

each year.  Net revenue requirements of at least 1.10

times the current year's debt service re quirements were

met in fis cal year 2005.
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DEBT SER VICE RE QUIRE MENTS

As of Sep tember 30, 2005, the De partment’s debt ser vice re quirements to ma turity and net swap payments, as suming cur rent interest
rates re main the same, for their term were as follows (in thousands). As rates vary, vari able-rate bond interest pay ments and net
swap payments will vary.

Ma tur ing in               Rev enue Bonds      State Loans   Notes Pay able                      Total
Fis cal Year Prin ci pal In ter est Swaps Prin ci pal In ter est Prin ci pal In ter est Prin ci pal In ter est Swaps

2006 $    31,510    62,927    21,578    10,574     4,345       224        15    42,308    67,287         21,578 
2007      35,730    61,182    21,549    11,300     3,988       121         2    47,151    65,172         21,549 
2008      39,235    59,453    19,809    10,703     3,626       -       -    49,938    63,079         19,809 
2009      41,015    57,709    15,658    11,061     3,269       -       -    52,076    60,978         15,658 
2010      42,780    55,925    15,623    11,431     2,901       -       -    54,211    58,826         15,623 
2011-2015     246,650   247,986    99,658    50,228     9,020       -       -   296,878   257,006         99,658 
2016-2020     320,060   201,195    88,061    22,775     3,133       -       -   342,835   204,328         88,061 
2021-2025     419,030   142,383    39,800     9,781       659       -       -   428,811   143,042         39,800 
2026-2030     351,425    37,264       234       -       -       -       -   351,425    37,264            234 

1,527,435   926,024   321,970   137,853    30,941       345        17 1,665,633   956,982        321,970 
Un am or tized
Dis count ,
De ferred &
Pre mium
Amounts     (33,846)       -       -       -       -       -       -   (33,846)       -            -

To tal         $  1,493,589   926,024   321,970   137,853    30,941       345        17 1,631,787   956,982        321,970 

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LI A BIL I TIES

A sum mary of the long-term li ability ac tivity dur ing fis cal years 2004 and 2005 is pre sented in the fol lowing ta ble (dol lars in thousands):

Outstanding Balance          2004 Balance         2005 Balance Due in
Description Rate 09/30/03 Additions Reductions 09/30/04 Additions Reductions 09/30/05 2006

Dade County Revenue Bonds

Se ries 1993 4.40%-5.00%      $    277,200       -   277,200       -       -       -       -       -

Se ries 1994 Vari able*             419,275       -       735   418,540       -       780   417,760       820 

Se ries 1995 4.10%-6.25%           332,265       -     3,305   328,960       -   298,695    30,265     3,625 

Se ries 1997 4.50%-6.25%           411,870       -     7,110   404,760       -     7,435   397,325     7,785 

Se ries 1999A 5.00%                150,000       -       -   150,000       -       -   150,000       -

Se ries 2003 2.00%-5.00%               -   248,890       -   248,890       -    12,045   236,845    19,280 

Se ries 2005 Vari able*                 -       -       -       -   295,240       -   295,240       -

Less: Un am or tized Dis count           (25,542)       -    (3,460)   (22,082)       -    (7,548)   (14,534)       -

Deferred amounts on refunding    (11,775)   (21,393)   (11,775)   (21,393)   (14,350)    (2,367)   (33,376)       -

Plus: Un am or tized Pre mium              -    17,580     1,758    15,822       -     1,758    14,064       -

To tal rev e nue bonds                1,553,293   245,077   274,873 1,523,497   280,890   310,798 1,493,589    31,510 

State Loan Obligations

State Re volv ing Fund 2.56%-4.17%   146,699     7,250     9,331   144,618     3,842    10,607   137,853    10,574 

Notes Payable

City of North Mi ami 6.00%             754       -       215       539       -       194       345       224 

Total long-term debt              1,700,746   252,327   284,419 1,668,654   284,732   321,599 1,631,787    42,308 

Other liabilities

Com pen sated ab sences               23,129    10,104     7,402    25,831    10,642     8,279    28,194     8,947 

Self-in sur ance                     20,015     3,731    12,510    11,236     5,087    11,878     4,445     2,774 

Swap op tion li a bil ity                 -    26,012       565    25,447       -    25,447       -       -

De ferred rev e nues                    -       -       -       -    24,559       -    24,559       -

To tal long-term li a bil i ties    $ 1,743,890   292,174   304,896 1,731,168   325,020   367,203 1,688,985    54,029 

* Variable rates range from 0.83%-3.0% and 2.75% for Series1994 and Series 2005, respectively.
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MIAMI-DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SE RIES 1999A

On May 5, 1999, $150 million of Dade County Water and

Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1999A were issued

to fi nance capital improvements to the water and

wastewater sys tems.

The Se ries 1999A Rev e nue Bonds are col lat er al ized by

the net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due

serially on October 1 through the year 2029 with

semi-annual interest due on April 1 and October 1 of

each year.  Net revenue requirements of at least 1.10

times the current year's debt service re quirements were

met in fis cal year 2005.

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SE RIES 2003

On Oc tober 9, 2003, $248.9 million of Miami-Dade

County Water and Sewer System Rev enue Refunding

Bonds, Series 2003 were is sued to re fund the County's

Water and Sewer System Rev enue Refunding Bonds, Se-

ries 1993, and to pay is sue costs.

The Se ries 2003 Re fund ing Bonds are col lat er al ized by

the net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due

serially on October 1 through the year 2013 with semi-an-

nual interest due on April 1 and October 1 of each

year. Net revenue requirements of at least 1.10 times the

current year's debt service re quirements were met in fis cal

year 2005.

The Series 2003 Refunding Bonds pro ceeds of $263.5

million were used to purchase $263.5 million in U.S.

Treasury se curities. Those securities were placed in an ir -

revocable trust with an escrow agent to pro vide for all fu -

ture debt service pay ments on the refunded ob ligations.

Ac cord ingly, these re funded ob li ga tions are con sid ered to

be defeased and the as sets held in trust have not been in -

cluded in the ac com pa ny ing fi nan cial state ments. Al-

though the re funding resulted in a de ferred charge of

$23.7 million, the De partment reduced its aggregate debt

service pay ments by $19.5 million and re ceived an eco-

nomic gain of $18.6 million. On No vember 14, 2003, the

De part ment re deemed the outstanding prin ci pal amount

of $257.1 million of the County's Water and Sewer System

Rev e nue Re fund ing Bonds, Se ries 1993.

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY REV ENUE BONDS, SE RIES 2005

On Sep tember 29, 2005, $295.2 million of Miami-Dade

County Water and Sewer System Rev enue Refunding

Variable Rate De mand Bonds, Se ries 2005 were is sued to

refund the County's Water and Sewer System Rev enue

Re fund ing Bonds, Se ries 1995 ma tur ing af ter Oc to ber 1,

2011, and to pay is sue costs.

The Se ries 2005 Re fund ing Bonds are col lat er al ized by

the net op erating revenues of the De partment and are due

serially on October 1 through the year 2025 with semi-an-

nual interest due on April 1 and October 1 of each

year. Net revenue requirements of at least 1.10 times the

current year's debt service re quirements were met in fis cal

year 2005.

The Series 2005 Refunding Bonds pro ceeds of $295.2

million, along with other funds, were used to pur chase

$301.6 million in U.S. Treasury securities. Those securi-

ties were placed in an ir revocable trust with an es crow

agent to pro vide for all fu ture debt service pay ments on

the re funded ob li ga tions. Ac cord ingly, these re funded ob-

ligations are considered to be defeased and the assets held

in trust have not been in cluded in the accompanying fi-

nancial statements. Al though the re funding resulted in a

deferred charge of $14.3 million, the De partment reduced

its ag gregate debt service pay ments by $31.1 million and

received an economic gain of $31.8 million. On Oc tober

31, 2005 the De partment redeemed the out standing prin-

cipal amount of the defeased $295.2 million of the

County's Water and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries

1995.

STATE RE VOLV ING FUND

Under the State Revolving Fund pro gram, the De part-

ment has re ceived var ious loan commitments for the

construction of wa ter and wastewater treat ment fa cili-

ties. Draws to date against committed loans as of  Sep -

tember 30, 2005 are de tailed in the following table (in

thou sands). Re lated pay ments of prin ci pal and in ter est

are due through the year 2024.
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  Draws Closed out
Loan # Com mit ments to date Loans

375310 $  45,906 $  45,906 06/07/99
377400 36,402 36,402 06/07/99
377450 27,831 27,831  05/18/01
377470 11,959 11,959 08/21/00
377490 3,098 3,098 05/02/01
377500 25,874 25,874 12/01/03
377650 2,618 2,618 08/08/03
377670 3,604 3,604    10/27/03
377860 6,200 3,627 ac tive 
377870 6,093 4,462 ac tive 
37788P 3,252 3,252 ac tive 
37789A 845 862 ac tive 

  37789L 12,798 2,270 ac tive 
300010 35,163 35,242 ac tive 
300080       4,691          4,691 04/28/03

$226,334 $211,698

No fur ther draws will be made against closed loans.

The De partment has agreed to main tain rates, to gether

with other pledged rev enues, sufficient to pro vide “net

revenues” equal to at least 1.15 times the an nual loan

payments af ter meeting the primary debt service re -

quirements.  Reserve and debt ser vice fund ing require-

ments, as re quired by the agreements, were met in fis cal

year 2005.

NOTES PAYABLE

Out stand ing notes pay able rep re sents a non-collateralized

note issued in 1979 in con nection with the acquisition of

the North Mi ami sani tary sew age ocean out fall line.  Such

note is sub ordinate debt maturing in 2007.

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREE MENTS

The De partment is cur rently a party to  three in terest rate

swap agreements: one swap re lating to the Series 1994

Revenue Bonds, one swap re lating to the Series 1995 Rev-

enue Bonds and an other swap relating to the Series 1997

Rev e nue Bonds. The debt ser vice re quirements to ma tu-

rity presented in the above re lated table are shown net of

these agreements.

Series 1994 In terest Rate Swap

The swap agreement relating to the Series 1994 Bonds is

between the Department and AIG Fi nancial Prod ucts Cor -

poration, and it’s a variable to fixed rate swap (bonds is-

sued as variable, swapped to fixed rate mode). The De -

partment’s ob jective with this swap was to ob tain a lower

fixed rate than was available at the time of is suance of the

re lated bonds.

Terms of the Agreement. The swap cal culations are based

on a no tional amount which amortizes with the Series

1994 Bonds and is set at $418.5 million for the cur rent fis -

cal year. The Department owes in terest to the

counterparty, cal culated at a 5.28% an nual fixed rate on

the no tional amount, and in return the counterparty owes

the De partment in terest at a vari able rate that matches the

variable rate pay able on the bonds.  The swap became ef-

fective on February 4, 1994 and it terminates on Oc tober

5, 2022, same date as for the Se ries 1994 Bonds.

Fair Value. As of September 30, 2005, based on an es ti-

mated mark-to-mid-market as sessment, the swap had a

negative fair value of $100.1 million. The negative fair

value may be coun tered by a re duction in total in terest

payments re quired un der the variable-rate bond, creating

a lower synthetic interest rate.

Credit Risk. AIG Fi nan cial Prod ucts Cor po ra tion is rated

AAA by Fitch Ratings. The De partment is not exposed to

credit risk on this swap.

Ba sis Risk. Counterparty is paying the same variable rate

as the De part ment‘s ob li ga tion to the bond hold ers. The

Department is not exposed to ba sis risk.  How ever, in the

event that the variable rate in dex were no lon ger issued

then the rate would con vert to an alternate rate, based on a

percentage of LIBOR. In that event, the De partment

would be ex posed to ba sis risk.

Series 1995 In terest Rate Swap

The swap  re lating to the Series 1995  Bonds is be-

tween the Department and Merrill Lynch Cap ital Ser-

vices, Inc., and it is a fixed to variable rate swap

(bonds issued as fixed, swapped to variable af ter June

15, 2008; with op tion to terminate on such date). The

Department en tered in this in terest rate swap to lower

its over all cost of bor rowing.
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Terms of the Agreement. The swap be came effective on

December 15, 1993 and amended on Au gust 26, 1998. It

ini tially provided for the De partment to re ceive pay-

ments at a fixed rate of 4.85% and to make payments at a

variable rate based on the BMA in dex.  The swap included

an op tion, ex ercisable by the counterparty, for the De part-

ment to re ceive pay ments at a vari able rate based on the

BMA in dex and to make payments at a fixed rate of

4.40%.

This agreement was fur ther amended on February 26,

2001 to pro vide for:  (i) the ex tension of the termination

date to June 15, 2020; (ii) the association of the swap with

the Department’s Se ries 1995 Bonds from the Series 1993

Refunding Bonds; (iii) an op tion in favor of the

counterparty to terminate the agreement on June 15, 2008;

(iv) an in creased fixed rate of 4.902%; (v) an ad ditional

fixed rate of 0.323% which sur vives the one day termina-

tion op tion; and (vi) a no tional amount de clining from

$215 million commencing September 25, 2015, to $154

million as of September 19, 2019, in step with the Series

1995 Bonds.

On Sep tember 20, 2001, the counterparty ex ercised the

option to receive payments from the Department at the

fixed rate of 4.40% and make pay ments at a vari able rate

based on the BMA in dex. The net ef fect of the ex ercised

option was for the De partment to pay a fixed rate of 4.40% 

until June 15, 2008, and then a variable rate to the termina-

tion date. The De partment re ceives from the counterparty

a fixed rate of 5.225% of the no tional amount.

Fair Value. As of September 30, 2005, based on an es ti-

mated mark-to-mid-market as sessment, the fair value of

the swap was a pos itive $6.7 million.

Credit Risk. Merrill Lynch Cap ital Services, Inc. is rated

A1 by Moody’s In vestor Service, Inc., and A+ by Stan-

dard and Poor’s Rating Services. Credit risk is pre sumed

to be minimal, or no greater than at the swap start date.

Ter mi na tion Risk. Counterparty has the op tion to partially

terminate the swap on June 15, 2008. No amounts shall be

payable by either party in re spect of such termination.

In ter est Rate Risk. Through June 15, 2008, the De part-

ment re ceives a net pay ment of 0.825%, therefore there is

no in terest rate risk through that date. Af ter June 15, 2008,

should the counterparty ex ercise the op tion and terminate,

the counterparty will pay the Department 0.323% on the

notional amount un til June 15, 2020. If the counterparty

does not terminate on June 15, 2008; then the Department

will make payments based on the BMA in dex, thereby the

Department will be ex posed to interest rate risk that short

term in terest rates will rise over the next twenty years to

the point where the vari able in terest rates paid by the De -

partment would ex ceed the new fixed rate re ceived by the

De part ment.

Roll over Risk. The Department is ex posed to this kind of

risk. Upon termination of the swap with the counterparty

Merrill Lynch Cap ital Services, Inc., the De partment will

no lon ger re alize the synthetic rate on the bonds and will

be ex posed to the full fixed rate on the bonds.

Series 1997 In terest Rate Swap

The swap agreement relating to the Series 1997 Bonds is

between the Department and RFPC Ltd., a division of

Rice Fi nancial Products Company. It is a variable to vari-

able swap (bonds is sued as fixed, en hanced by basis

swap).  The Department en tered in this interest rate swap

to lower its overall cost of bor rowing.

Terms of the Agreement. The swap be came effective on

August 27, 1998, and initially pro vided for the De part-

ment to pay BMA di vided by 0.604 of the out standing no -

tional amount of $114.5 million and the counterparty to

pay the De partment LIBOR + 1.28% of the outstanding

notional amount, with such no tional amount to be re duced

each Oc tober 1, commencing on October 1, 2010 as set

forth in a schedule attached to the con firmation.

The swap had a termination date of Oc tober 1, 2013. On

July 18, 2002, said swap was amended to pro vide:

(i) the association of the swap with the De partment’s Se -

ries 1997 Bonds from the Series 1993 Refunding Bonds;

(ii) an increase of the no tional amount from $114.5 mil-

lion to $200 million to be reduced each October 1, com-

mencing on October 1,  2021as set forth in a

pre de ter mined re duc tion sched ule; (iii) the ex ten sion of
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the ter mi na tion date to Oc to ber 1, 2026, and (iv) an in-

crease to the constant from 1.28% to 1.455%.

Fair Value. As of September 30, 2005, based on an es ti-

mated mark-to-mid-mar ket as sessment, the fair value of

the swap was a neg ative $7.5 million.

Credit Risk.  RFPC Ltd., a division of Rice Fi nancial Prod-

ucts Company, is guaranteed by AMBAC, rated Aaa by

Moody’s In vestor Service, Inc. and AAA by Standard and

Poor’s Ratings Services. Credit Risk is pre sumed to be

minimal or no greater than at the swap start date. 

In ter est Rate Risk. The principal risk associated with the

swap is the re lationship between the tax-exempt and the

taxable mar kets, specifically the changes in the ra tio be -

tween tax-exempt and tax able in terest rates. If fed eral in -

come tax rates are re duced during the term of the

transaction, BMA (the tax exempt in terest rate) would rise

to levels that trade closer to tax able rates, i.e. LIBOR, and

thus in crease the payments owed by the Department to

RFPC.

Ba sis Risk. LIBOR and BMA are independent variable

rate in dexes, the Department is ex posed to basis risk.

Series 1995 Swap Op tion Agreement

Terms of the Agreement. On March 12, 2004, the De part-

ment entered into a swap op tion transaction that  locked in

the cur rent in terest rate sav ings as sociated with the Water

and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Se ries 1995. The De partment

sold an op tion to a counterparty, Bank of America Se curi-

ties, to cause the Department to is sue variable rate bonds

and then to swap the variable rate bonds to a fixed rate of

5.27%. In exchange for the op tion, the De partment re-

ceived ap proximately $26 million, and the counterparty

exercised the op tion to effectuate the swap on Au gust 15,

2005. The Department received an additional $10.9 mil-

lion at the time of issuance of the variable rate bonds and

variable to fixed rate swap.

Fair Value. As of September 30, 2005, based on an es ti-

mated mark-to-mid-mar ket as sessment, the fair value of

the swap op tion was a neg ative $32.3 million.

Interest Rate Risk . The coun ter party ex ercised its option

and the De partment has issued the variable rate bonds and

the vari able to fixed rate swap became effective Oc tober

3, 2005.

Credit Risk. If the counterparty fails to fulfil its contrac-

tual ob ligations, the De partment will be exposed to this

risk. To mit igate this risk, the County main tains strict

credit standards for the counterparty. The County re quires

all counterparties for lon ger term swaps to be rated in the

double-A category by both Moody's and Standard &

Poor's. In ad dition, the County's swap doc uments re quire

counterparties to post col lateral for the De partment's ben -

efit if they are down graded below a des ignated threshold.

Bank of America Se curities is rated Aa1 by Moody's In -

vestors Service, Inc., and AA by Standard and Poor's Rat-

ing Services.

Ba sis Risk. The Department would be exposed to ba sis

risk if the variable rate on the new variable rate bonds do

not match the variable rate re ceived on the swap. Should

the vari able rate the De partment re ceives on the swap fall

short of the variable rate on the new variable rate bonds,

the ex pected savings will not be re alized.

6. RE CEIV ABLES
Receivables at Sep tember 30, 2005 and 2004, were as fol-

lows (in thou sands):

2005 2004

Trade ac counts $84,871 $87,124
Nonretail ac counts  11,299 8,127
Other County funds  3,359 2,673
Other gov ern ments          28        216
Gross re ceiv ables  99,557  98,140
Less: al low ance for
     doubt ful accounts  (24,459)  (23,127)
Net re ceiv ables  $75,098   $75,013 

7. PAYABLES
Payables at Sep tember 30, 2005 and 2004, were as fol-

lows (in thou sands):
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2005 2004

Other County funds       $11,121 $11,772
Ven dors     16,636  13,783
Other gov ern ments   16,888 16,295
Sal a ries and ben e fits 6,737 9,035
Con trac tors 5,384 7,530
Other       242       242
To tal payables $57,008 $58,657

8. PEN SION PLAN
The De partment, as an agency of the County, par ticipates

in the Florida Re tirement Sys tem (the FRS), a

cost-sharing multi-employer pub lic employment retire-

ment sys tem, which covers substantially all of the Depart-

ment's full-time and part-time employees.

The FRS was created in 1970 by con solidating several em-

ployee re tirement sys tems and it is ad ministered by the

State of Florida. All el igible em ployees as de fined by the

State of Florida who were hired af ter 1970, and those em-

ployed prior to 1970 who elected to be en rolled, are cov -

ered by the FRS.

Benefits un der the “FRS Pension Plan”, a de fined ben efit

program, vest af ter six years of ser vice.  Em ployees who

retire at or af ter age 62, with six years of credited ser vice,

are en ti tled to an an nual re tire ment ben e fit, pay able

monthly for life.  The FRS also pro vides for early retire-

ment at reduced benefits and death and dis ability benefits.

These ben efit pro visions and all other re quirements are es-

tablished by State of Florida stat utes. Retirement benefits

are pre-funded by employer con tributions and participant

con tri bu tions are not al lowed.

The leg is la ture cre ated a new de fined con tri bu tion pro-

gram that was added to the menu of choices available to

FRS members beginning June 2002. For mally created as

the Pub lic Em ployee Op tional Re tire ment Pro gram, the

“FRS In vestment Plan” is available as an op tion for all

cur rent and fu ture mem bers, in clud ing re newed mem bers

(FRS re tirees who have returned to FRS employment).

The FRS In vestment Plan is a defined con tribution plan

where the con tribution amount is fixed by a set per centage

determined by law and the con tribution is made to an in di-

vid ual ac count in each par tic i pant’s name. Par tic i pant

con tri bu tions are not al lowed. With a de fined con tri bu tion

plan, in which the monthly contribution rate is fixed, the

final benefit will be the total ac count value (contributions

plus investment earnings less expenses and losses) dis -

tributed during retirement.

The covered payroll for De partment employees in the

FRS for the years ended Sep tember 30, 2005 and 2004

was $130.6 million and $120.6 million, re spectively,

while the Department's to tal pay roll was $130.6 mil lion

and $119.4 million for fiscal 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Pension costs of the De partment as re quired and de -

fined by Florida statute ranged between 7.8% and

18.5% of gross salaries dur ing fiscal 2005 and be tween

7.4% and 18.5% dur ing fiscal 2004. For the years ended 

September 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the De partment's

ac tual con tri bu tions met all re quired con tri bu tions.

These con tri bu tions ag gre gated $10.0 mil lion, $8.7

million and $6.8 million, re spectively, which rep re-

sented 7.6%, 7.2%  and 6.3% of cov ered payroll, re -

spectively, and 0.4%, 0.4% and 0.4% of the to tal

con tri bu tions re quired of all par tic i pat ing agen cies, re-

spectively, for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Ten-year his tor i cal trend in for ma tion is pre sented in the

FRS' June 30, 2005 annual report. This information is

use ful in as sess ing the FRS' ac cu mu la tion of suf fi cient

assets to pay pension benefits as they become due. A

copy of the Florida Retirement System' annual report

can be ob tained by writing to the Department of Man -

age ment Ser vices, Di vi sion of Re tire ment, 2639 North

Monroe Street, Building C, Tal la has see, FL32399-1560

or by calling (850) 488-5706.

9. RISK MAN AGE MENT
The Department is ex posed to var ious risks of loss re -

lated to torts; theft of, damage to and de struction of as -

sets; errors and omissions; job-related in juries or

ill nesses to em ploy ees; nat u ral di sas ters and em ployee

health and ac cident. In the year ended September 30,

1987, the De partment established a self-insurance pro -

gram for gen eral and au to mo bile li a bil ity ex po sures,

provided by Sec tion 706 of County Or dinance 78-82, as

amended.
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Claims are ad ministered by the County's Risk Management

Division, and the pro gram is based upon an ac tuarial study

per formed an nu ally by con sult ing ac tu ar ies. Li a bil i ties are

reported when it is prob able that a loss has occurred and the

amount of that loss can be rea sonably estimated. Li abilities

also in clude an amount for claims that have been incurred

but not re ported (IBNR). Because ac tual claims li abilities

depend on such complex factors as in flation, change in le-

gal doctrines and damage awards, the pro cess used in com-

put ing claims li a bil ity does not nec es sar ily re sult in an

ex act amount. Claims li a bil i ties are re-evaluated pe ri od i -

cally to take into consideration re cently settled claims, the

frequency of claims and other economic and so cial fac tors.

Changes in the bal ance of claim li abilities for the gen eral

and au tomobile self-insurance program dur ing fiscal

years 2005 and 2004 were as fol lows (in thou sands):

2005 2004
Bal ance at

be gin ning of year   $9,933 $14,753
Claims and changes

in es ti mates (6,052)     (3,960)
Less: Pay ments      (784) (860)

Balance at end of year $3,097   $9,933 

The De part ment par tic i pates in the work ers' com pen sa -

tion self-insurance pro gram of the County, ad ministered

by the Risk Management Division. Risk Management

charges a “premium” to each County de partment based on

amounts necessary to pro vide funding for expected pay-

ments during the fiscal year. The es timate of IBNR losses

is per formed by an in de pend ent ac tu ary. The De part ment

maintains a li ability in the amount of $1.3 mil lion as of

September 30, 2005 and 2004 for pos sible funding of

these IBNR losses. The County maintains no ex cess cov -

er age with in de pend ent car ri ers for work ers' com pen sa-

tion. The De partment’s total self-insurance li ability was

$4.4 million and $11.2 million as of September 30, 2005

and 2004, respectively.

The Department also participates in the County's group

health and life self-insurance pro gram, ad ministered by an 

in de pend ent ad min is tra tor. The County charges a uni -

form “pre mium” per employee to each County depart-

ment based on recent trends in ac tual claims ex perience

and makes pro visions for catastrophic losses. Cur rent

year pre miums are ad justed for County-wide prior year

ac tual claims ex pe ri ence.

The De part ment con tin ues to carry com mer cial in sur ance

for all other risks of loss.  Set tled claims re sulting from these

risks have not ex ceeded com mer cial in sur ance cov er age in

any of the past three fiscal years.

10. CON TRI BU TIONS
A schedule of con tributions dur ing fiscal years 2005 and

2004 is presented be low (in thou sands):

2005 2004
Con trib uted Fa cil ities

De vel op ers $11,642 $8,230
Cus tom ers 2,679 2,099
Con nec tion charges   40,577 32,607
   Total ad ditions $54,898 $42,936

11.  RE LATED PARTY TRANS ACTIONS
The De partment provides water and wastewater ser vices

to other County de partments as part of the nor mal course

of business, based on reg ular re tail rates.  The De partment

also pro vides billing services to other County de part-

ments. The County pro vides var ious services to the De -

partment which are charged us ing direct and in direct cost

al lo ca tion meth ods. The De part ment re im burses the

County (Gen eral Fund) for cer tain ad min is tra tive ser-

vices.  The fol lowing table presents a list of pro viders of

services and re spective payments for the years ended Sep-

tember 30, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2005 2004

Gen eral Ser vices Ad min is tra tion $15,715 $14,501
Gen eral Fund 11,052 11,091
Pub lic Works 4,500      3,176
In for ma tion Tech nol ogy 7,270 8,866
En vi ron men tal Re sources Mgmt. 1,369 482
Solid Waste 1,211 1,321
Fire De part ment 1,000 6
Parks and Rec reation 7 6,215
Man age ment and Bud get 174 1,449
Other County Departments 2,668 2,266
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Claims are ad ministered by the County's Risk Management

Division, and the pro gram is based upon an ac tuarial study

per formed an nu ally by con sult ing ac tu ar ies. Li a bil i ties are

reported when it is prob able that a loss has occurred and the

amount of that loss can be rea sonably estimated. Li abilities

also in clude an amount for claims that have been incurred

but not re ported (IBNR). Because ac tual claims li abilities

depend on such complex factors as in flation, change in le-

gal doctrines and damage awards, the pro cess used in com-

put ing claims li a bil ity does not nec es sar ily re sult in an

ex act amount. Claims li a bil i ties are re-evaluated pe ri od i -

cally to take into consideration re cently settled claims, the

frequency of claims and other economic and so cial fac tors.

Changes in the bal ance of claim li abilities for the gen eral

and au tomobile self-insurance program dur ing fiscal

years 2005 and 2004 were as fol lows (in thou sands):

2005 2004
Bal ance at

be gin ning of year   $9,933 $14,753
Claims and changes

in es ti mates (6,052)     (3,960)
Less: Pay ments      (784) (860)

Balance at end of year $3,097   $9,933 

The De part ment par tic i pates in the work ers' com pen sa -

tion self-insurance pro gram of the County, ad ministered

by the Risk Management Division. Risk Management

charges a “premium” to each County de partment based on

amounts necessary to pro vide funding for expected pay-

ments during the fiscal year. The es timate of IBNR losses

is per formed by an in de pend ent ac tu ary. The De part ment

maintains a li ability in the amount of $1.3 mil lion as of

September 30, 2005 and 2004 for pos sible funding of

these IBNR losses. The County maintains no ex cess cov -

er age with in de pend ent car ri ers for work ers' com pen sa-

tion. The De partment’s total self-insurance li ability was

$4.4 million and $11.2 million as of September 30, 2005

and 2004, respectively.

The Department also participates in the County's group

health and life self-insurance pro gram, ad ministered by an 

in de pend ent ad min is tra tor. The County charges a uni -

form “pre mium” per employee to each County depart-

ment based on recent trends in ac tual claims ex perience

and makes pro visions for catastrophic losses. Cur rent

year pre miums are ad justed for County-wide prior year

ac tual claims ex pe ri ence.

The De part ment con tin ues to carry com mer cial in sur ance

for all other risks of loss.  Set tled claims re sulting from these

risks have not ex ceeded com mer cial in sur ance cov er age in

any of the past three fiscal years.

10. CON TRI BU TIONS
A schedule of con tributions dur ing fiscal years 2005 and

2004 is presented be low (in thou sands):

2005 2004
Con trib uted Fa cil ities

De vel op ers $11,642 $8,230
Cus tom ers 2,679 2,099
Con nec tion charges   40,577 32,607
   Total ad ditions $54,898 $42,936

11.  RE LATED PARTY TRANS ACTIONS
The De partment provides water and wastewater ser vices

to other County de partments as part of the nor mal course

of business, based on reg ular re tail rates.  The De partment

also pro vides billing services to other County de part-

ments. The County pro vides var ious services to the De -

partment which are charged us ing direct and in direct cost

al lo ca tion meth ods. The De part ment re im burses the

County (Gen eral Fund) for cer tain ad min is tra tive ser-

vices.  The fol lowing table presents a list of pro viders of

services and re spective payments for the years ended Sep-

tember 30, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2005 2004

Gen eral Ser vices Ad min is tra tion $15,715 $14,501
Gen eral Fund 11,052 11,091
Pub lic Works 4,500      3,176
In for ma tion Tech nol ogy 7,270 8,866
En vi ron men tal Re sources Mgmt. 1,369 482
Solid Waste 1,211 1,321
Fire De part ment 1,000 6
Parks and Rec reation 7 6,215
Man age ment and Bud get 174 1,449
Other County Departments 2,668 2,266
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In ad dition to the above pay ments, the De partment had re -

lated payables of $12.2 million and $13 million at Septem-

ber 30, 2005 and 2004, re spectively.  The Department also

had re ceivables from other County de partments amount-

ing to $1.4 million and $0.9 million at September 30, 2005 

and 2004, respectively.  The Department has ev ery in ten-

tion of paying the out standing payables on a timely ba sis,

and is confident it will collect the outstanding re ceivables.

The Department transferred $27.7 million and $37.9 mil-

lion to the Gen eral Fund in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, re-

spectively.  The transfers to the Gen eral Fund have been

classified in the financial state ments as Transfers to

County’s Gen eral Fund.

The Department has also en tered into other transactions

with var i ous County en ti ties. These trans ac tions arise

from the normal course of business and in con nection with

the man age ment of on go ing pro jects.

12. COM MIT MENTS AND CON TIN GEN CIES
CON STRUC TION

The De part ment had con trac tual com mit ments of $26.7

million for plant and infrastructure con struction at Sep-

tember 30, 2005.

LE GAL CON TIN GEN CIES

The County is a de fendant in var ious actions brought  by

parties in the normal course of business of  the  Depart-

ment. Based on con sultation with the County At tor-

ney’s Office, it is the opin ion of management that the

ul ti mate res o lu tion of these suits would not ma te ri ally

affect the fi nancial position of the Department or its

ability to conduct its business.

FED ERAL GRANTS

Federal grant awards are audited un der the pro visions

of the Sin gle Audit Act and Office of Management and

Budget Circular A-133 to determine that the De part-

ment has complied with the terms and conditions of the

grant awards. Fed eral grants re ceived are also sub ject to 

audit by the federal grantor agency. It is man agement's

opin ion that no ma te rial li a bil i ties will re sult from any

such audits.

REBATABLE AR BI TRAGE EARN INGS

Federal tax law re quires that ar bitrage in terest earn ings

be re mitted to the federal gov ernment, un less the lo cal

government qualifies for an exemption. As of Septem-

ber 30, 2005 and 2004, the De partment  recorded ob li-

gations to rebate ap proximately $0.2 million and  $0.5

million, re spectively, of in terest earned on bond pro -

ceeds in vested in taxable se curities in ex cess of interest

costs. These ar bitrage re bates are payable five years

from the date of the bond issuance and each five years

thereafter. The amount of the ob ligation, if any, will be

de ter mined based on ac tual in ter est earned.

SET TLE MENT AGREE MENTS

In 1993, the Department entered into a settlement agree-

ment with the Florida De partment of En vironmental

Pro tec tion (FDEP) re sult ing in very lim ited re stric tions

on new sewer con struction in certain ar eas of the County

un til ad e quate ca pac ity be comes avail able in the

wastewater system. Sub sequently, in 1994 and 1995,

two consent de crees were en tered into with the U.S. En -

vironmental Pro tection Agency (EPA) whereby the De -

part ment ac cel er ated its im prove ment pro gram of the

wastewater sys tem, subject to a schedule of stipulated

pen al ties if cer tain es tab lished com ple tion dates are not

met.

In De cem ber 1997, an Ad min is tra tive Or der on Con-

sent (AOC) with the EPA be came effective, which ad -

dressed al leged vi olations of fed eral and state laws

re gard ing un der ground in jec tion of treated wastewater.

On April 16, 2002, the EPA no tified the County that it

was ter mi nat ing the ex ist ing AOC ef fec tive Au gust 1,

2002; based on the EPA’s de termination that the pur-

pose of the de cree had been ful filled. The EPA fur ther

directed the County to ne gotiate a new consent or der

with the FDEP to ad dress the continued use of the in jec-

tion wells. The County negotiated a new consent or der

with the FDEP and on July 22, 2003, the Board of

County Commissioners approved the draft con sent or -

der. On April 29, 2004, the Con sent Or der, OGC File
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No. 03-1376, was en tered into be tween the State of

Florida De part ment of En vi ron ment Pro tec tion and Mi-

ami-Dade County. It requires the County to pro vide

high level dis infection for the effluent prior to in jection,

by April 2009. The capital cost of these improvements

is ap prox i mately $250 mil lion.

13.  SUB SEQUENT EVENTS
In Sep tember 2005, the Board of County Commissioners

approved an in crease in rates and fees for retail and whole-

sale customers as part of the County Budget Ordinance ef-

fec tive Oc to ber 1, 2005.

In Feb ruary 2006, the Board of County Commissioners

adopted a res o lu tion au tho riz ing the par tial ter mi na tion of

certain components of the swap agreement with Merrill

Lynch Cap ital Ser vices, Inc., as sociated with the Water

and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1997, on a no -

tional amount of $215 million, pro vided the economic

benefit to the County is not less than $8.5 million. In

March 2006, the monetization of the Merrill Swap was

completed with the De partment re ceiving a cash pay ment

of $9.1 million

Also in Feb ruary 2006, the Board adopted a resolution au -

thorizing the County Manager or his designee to en ter into

a ba sis swap with Rice Fi nancial Prod ucts Company and

guaranteed by the Bank of New York, as sociated with the

Water and Sewer Sys tem Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1994

and Series 1999 on a no tional amount not to ex ceed

$205.1 million pro vided it is de termined to be a of eco-

nomic benefit to the County. Based on expected

BMA/LIBOR relationships, it is expected that the swap

would gen er ate ap prox i mately $1.7 mil lion an nu ally in

debt service sav ings for a pres ent value over the life of the

transaction of $22 million. Ac tual sav ings will not be de-

termined un til they occur.
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No. 03-1376, was en tered into be tween the State of

Florida De part ment of En vi ron ment Pro tec tion and Mi-

ami-Dade County. It requires the County to pro vide

high level dis infection for the effluent prior to in jection,

by April 2009. The capital cost of these improvements

is ap prox i mately $250 mil lion.

13.  SUB SEQUENT EVENTS
In Sep tember 2005, the Board of County Commissioners

approved an in crease in rates and fees for retail and whole-

sale customers as part of the County Budget Ordinance ef-

fec tive Oc to ber 1, 2005.

In Feb ruary 2006, the Board of County Commissioners

adopted a res o lu tion au tho riz ing the par tial ter mi na tion of

certain components of the swap agreement with Merrill

Lynch Cap ital Ser vices, Inc., as sociated with the Water

and Sewer System Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1997, on a no -

tional amount of $215 million, pro vided the economic

benefit to the County is not less than $8.5 million. In

March 2006, the monetization of the Merrill Swap was

completed with the De partment re ceiving a cash pay ment

of $9.1 million

Also in Feb ruary 2006, the Board adopted a resolution au -

thorizing the County Manager or his designee to en ter into

a ba sis swap with Rice Fi nancial Prod ucts Company and

guaranteed by the Bank of New York, as sociated with the

Water and Sewer Sys tem Rev enue Bonds, Se ries 1994

and Series 1999 on a no tional amount not to ex ceed

$205.1 million pro vided it is de termined to be a of eco-

nomic benefit to the County. Based on expected

BMA/LIBOR relationships, it is expected that the swap

would gen er ate ap prox i mately $1.7 mil lion an nu ally in

debt service sav ings for a pres ent value over the life of the

transaction of $22 million. Ac tual sav ings will not be de-

termined un til they occur.
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Bond Or dinance 93-134 re quires the De partment to es tablish certain re stricted ac counts to be used in

accounting for pro ceeds and collateral pledged as a re sult of the debt.  In many cases, the bond or di-

nance refers to the re stricted ac counts as “funds”.  Such ac counts are not “funds” as de fined by NCGA

State ment 1: Gov ern men tal Ac count ing and Fi nan cial Re porting Prin ci ples and, there fore, are not

funds for fi nan cial re port ing pur poses.

Similarly, the Water and Wastewater Sys tems do not meet the above ref erenced definition and, there -

fore, combining statements are not pre sented.  The fol lowing system schedules are fur nished solely as

sup ple men tary in for ma tion and are not re quired by GAAP.

Supplementary Financial Data



Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 48

September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $       25,404 $      43,218 
Investments         81,317        65,967 
Accounts receivable
    (net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of
     $13.6 million in 2005 and $11.8 million in 2004)         34,901        34,116
Inventory of materials and supplies         14,284        12,890 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents        36,078        34,117

    Total current assets       191,984       190,308 

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents         10,884        49,309 
Investments        220,156       202,628 
Contracts receivable           265            29 

    Total restricted assets       231,305       251,966 

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred debt issue costs, net          4,373         5,080 
Other deferred charges, net           318         1,614 

    Total other assets         4,691         6,694 

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land         12,651        12,453 
Structures and improvements      1,184,414     1,138,439 
Equipment       240,733       235,778 

Utility plant in service before depreciation      1,437,798     1,386,670 

Less accumulated depreciation       365,178       334,629 

    Net utility plant in service      1,072,620     1,052,041 

Construction work in progress       154,523       165,271 

    Total capital assets     1,227,143     1,217,312 

    Total noncurrent assets     1,463,139     1,475,972 

    Total assets  $  1,655,123  $ 1,666,280
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(Continued)
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(Continued) September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM UNRESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $       17,729 $      18,445 
Customer and developer deposits         15,119        12,433 
Current portion of long-term debt          1,125         1,091 
Current portion of swap option            -           141 
Accrued interest payable             61           204 
Rebatable arbitrage earnings            144            86 
Liability for compensated absences          3,031         2,879 
Other liabilities         3,143         2,488 

    Total current liabilities (payable from unrestricted current assets)        40,352        37,767 

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses          4,919         4,729 
Retainage payable          1,897         2,170 
Current portion of long-term debt         15,387        10,466 
Accrued interest payable          9,301        10,610 
Liability for self-insurance         2,774         6,141 

    Total current liabilities (payable from restricted current assets)        34,278        34,116

    Total current liabilities        74,630        71,883 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revenue bonds payable, net        397,854       413,491 
State loan obligations, net         35,033        33,180 
Liability for self-insurance          1,671         5,095 
Liability for compensated absences          7,209         6,463 
Liability for swap option            -         3,898 
Deferred revenues         3,898           -

    Total noncurrent liabilities       445,665       462,127 

    Total liabilities       520,295       534,010 

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt        908,612       915,479 
Restricted for:
   Capital projects         28,461        52,795 
   Debt service         49,771        43,391 
Unrestricted       147,984       120,605 

    Total net assets     1,134,828     1,132,270 

    Total liabilities and net assets  $  1,655,123  $ 1,666,280
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 50

For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Retail $    138,297 $     137,739 
Wholesale         21,962        22,122 
Other revenues        10,646        10,230 

       Total operating revenues       170,905       170,091 

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:
Source of supply          5,710         5,110
Power and pumping          1,604         2,257 
Purification         50,221        40,660 
Transmission and distribution         21,900        21,452 
Customer accounting          4,389         3,735 
Customer service          9,526         8,811
General and administrative        25,776        20,349 

       Total operating and maintenance expenses       119,126       102,374 

       Operating income before depreciation         51,779        67,717 

DEPRECIATION        35,488        34,251 

       Operating income         16,291        33,466 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income         10,060         4,016 
Interest expense        (18,558)       (19,353)
Amortization of debt issue costs           (304)          (304)
Operating grants            114           326 
Other revenues            346           -
Transfers to County’s General Fund       (12,188)       (11,865)

       Income (loss) before contributions and transfers         (4,239)         6,286 

Capital contributions         16,251        14,245 
Transfer from reserves        (9,454)       (32,305)

       Increase (decrease) in net assets          2,558       (11,774)

Net assets at beginning of year     1,132,270     1,144,044 

Net assets at end of year  $  1,134,828  $ 1,132,270
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For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $    171,544 $     175,942 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services        (69,751)       (65,614)
Cash paid to employees for services        (56,084)       (49,427)
Transfer (from) reserves        (9,454)       (32,305)

       Net cash provided by operating activities        36,255        28,596 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating grants received            -           165 
Transfers to County’s General Fund       (12,188)       (11,865)

       Net cash used in non-capital financing activities       (12,188)       (11,700)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bond issues, loan agreements and notes          3,304         9,924 
Principal payments - bonds, loans and notes        (11,657)       (16,871)
Interest paid        (24,434)       (26,765)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment            186           -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets        (34,104)       (50,570)
Contributions received        10,773         9,271 

       Net cash used in capital and related financing activities       (55,932)       (75,011)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities    (277,290)      (127,878)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment securities        250,863       124,941 
Interest on investments         4,014         6,800 

       Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities       (22,413)         3,863 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents     (54,278)       (54,252)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year       126,644       180,896 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $      72,366  $   126,644 
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 52

(Continued) For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $       16,291 $      33,466 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
   Depreciation         35,488        34,251 
   Provision for uncollectible accounts          1,718         1,130 
   Transfer (from) reserves         (9,454)       (32,305)
   (Increase) decrease in assets:
       Accounts receivable         (2,392)        (1,682)
       Inventory of materials and supplies         (1,394)          (760)
       Other deferred charges          1,295           449 
   Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
       Accounts payable and accrued expenses           (716)         1,228 
       Customer and developer deposits            758         1,151 
       Accrued interest payable           (101)          (122)
       Liability for compensated absences            898         1,018 
       Other liabilities            655          (449)
       Liability for self-insurance        (6,791)        (8,779)

       Net cash provided by operating activities  $      36,255  $    28,596 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
     Property, plant and equipment contributions were received in amounts of $5.2 million and $5.1 million in fiscal
     years 2005 and 2004, respectively.

     The decrease in the fair value of investments were $0.9 million and $4.1 million in fiscal years 2005
     and 2004, respectively.

     $295.2 million of Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Variable Rate Demand
     Bonds, Series 2005  were issued to refund $295.2 million of Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue
     Bonds, Series 1995.

 2005  2004 
(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR:
Unrestricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents $       25,404 $      43,218 
Restricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents         36,078        34,117
Restricted Noncurrent Cash and Cash Equivalents        10,884        49,309 

       Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $      72,366  $   126,644 
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Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2005

(In thousands)

Variance
under

 Budget  Actual  (over) 

Source of supply $      6,244 $     5,710 $     534 

Power and pumping       2,847      1,604     1,243 

Purification     47,163     50,221    (3,058)

Transmission and distribution     23,205     21,900     1,305 

Customer accounting      4,599      4,389       210 

Customer service     10,820      9,526     1,294 

General and administrative     23,039     25,776    (2,737)

Totals $  117,917 $ 119,126 $(1,209)
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 54

September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $        7,221 $      22,604 
Investments         27,137        30,570 
Accounts receivable
    (net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of
     $10.9 million in 2005 and $11.3 million in 2004)         40,197        40,897 
Inventory of materials and supplies         10,717         9,512 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents        49,846        57,840 

    Total current assets       135,118       161,423 

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

RESTRICTED ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents         25,401       107,958 
Investments        357,310       278,512 
Contracts receivable           147           147 

    Total restricted assets       382,858       386,617 

OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred debt issue costs, net         11,506        10,129 
Other deferred charges, net         1,452         1,749 
    Total other assets        12,958        11,878

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Land         22,369        22,321 
Structures and improvements      2,015,431     1,953,599 
Equipment       528,924       520,124 

Utility plant in service before depreciation      2,566,724     2,496,044 

Less accumulated depreciation     1,012,728       938,671 

    Net utility plant in service      1,553,996     1,557,373 

Construction work in progress       176,881       190,411

    Total capital assets     1,730,877     1,747,784 

    Total noncurrent assets     2,126,693     2,146,279 

    Total assets  $  2,261,811  $ 2,307,702
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(Continued) September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM UNRESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $       28,995 $      27,710 
Customer and developer deposits          4,985         4,838 
Current portion of long-term debt          6,571         6,386 
Current portion of swap option            -           747 
Accrued interest payable             74           147 
Rebatable arbitrage earnings             73           455 
Liability for compensated absences          5,916         5,400 
Other liabilities         1,430         1,064 

    Total current liabilities (payable from unrestricted current assets)        48,044        46,747 

CURRENT LIABILITIES (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED CURRENT ASSETS):
Accounts payable and accrued expenses          5,365         7,773 
Retainage payable          2,241         2,298 
Current portion of long-term debt         19,225        16,555 
Accrued interest payable        23,789        31,214 

    Total current liabilities (payable from restricted current assets)        50,620        57,840 

    Total current liabilities        98,664       104,587 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revenue bonds payable, net      1,064,225     1,086,291 
State loan obligations, net         92,246       100,849 
Notes payable, net            121           345 
Liability for compensated absences         12,038        11,089
Liability for swap option            -        20,661 
Deferred revenues        20,661           -

    Total noncurrent liabilities     1,189,291     1,219,235 

    Total liabilities     1,287,955     1,323,822 

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt        761,761       725,172 
Restricted for:
   Capital projects         84,950       124,805 
   Debt service         84,765        85,478 
Unrestricted        42,380        48,425 

    Total net assets       973,856       983,880 

    Total liabilities and net assets  $  2,261,811  $ 2,307,702
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 56

For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Retail $    159,077 $     157,437 
Wholesale         53,051        49,379 
Other revenues         8,927         8,666 

       Total operating revenues       221,055       215,482 

OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:
Collection system         15,582        14,534 
Pumping         26,196        23,838 
Treatment         55,206        48,851 
Customer accounting          1,603         3,132 
Customer service          7,186         6,827 
General and administrative        33,480        33,357 

       Total operating and maintenance expenses       139,253       130,539 

       Operating income before depreciation         81,802        84,943 

DEPRECIATION        82,773        88,549 

       Operating loss           (971)        (3,606)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income         12,427         4,769 
Interest expense        (53,847)       (53,428)
Amortization of debt issue costs           (567)          (567)
Other revenues            346           -
Transfers to County’s General Fund       (15,513)       (26,034)

       Loss before contributions and transfers        (58,125)       (78,866)

Capital contributions         38,647        28,691 
Transfer from reserves         9,454        32,305 

       Decrease in net assets        (10,024)       (17,870)

Net assets at beginning of year       983,880     1,001,750 

Net assets at end of year  $    973,856  $   983,880 
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For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers $    222,198 $     212,653 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services        (54,982)       (55,121)
Cash paid to employees for services        (82,430)       (74,143)
Transfer from reserves         9,454        32,305 

       Net cash provided by operating activities        94,240       115,694

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers to County’s General Fund       (15,513)       (26,034)

       Net cash used in non-capital financing activities       (15,513)       (26,034)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from bond issues, loan agreements and notes            371        25,786 
Principal payments - bonds, loans and notes        (22,859)       (24,016)
Interest paid        (76,366)       (48,060)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment            121           -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets     (56,670)       (56,276)
Contributions received        33,717        26,795 

       Net cash used in capital and related financing activities      (121,686)       (75,771)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities    (369,541)      (246,033)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment securities        288,467       209,751 
Interest on investments        18,099         8,599 

       Net cash used in investing activities       (62,975)       (27,683)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (105,934) (13,794)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year       188,402       202,196 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $      82,468  $   188,402 
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 58

(Continued) For the years ended September 30,  2005  2004 

(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $       (971) $      (3,606)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
   Depreciation         82,773        88,549 
   Provision for uncollectible accounts           (412)         1,167 
   Amortization of deferred charges            296           296 
   Transfer from reserves          9,454        32,305 
   (Increase) decrease in assets:
       Accounts receivable          1,114        (5,786)
       Inventory of materials and supplies         (1,205)        (1,564)
   Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
       Accounts payable and accrued expenses          1,285         3,074 
       Customer and developer deposits            147          (219)
       Accrued interest payable            (73)           (88)
       Liability for compensated absences          1,465         1,684 
       Other liabilities           367          (118)

       Net cash provided by operating activities  $      94,240  $   115,694

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
     Property, plant and equipment contributions were received in amounts of $4.9 million and $1.9 million in fiscal
     years 2005 and 2004, respectively.

     The decrease in the fair value of investments were $1.0 million and $4.7 million in fiscal years 2005
     and 2004, respectively.

     $295.2 million of Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Variable Rate Demand
     Bonds, Series 2005  were issued to refund $295.2 million of Dade County Water and Sewer System Revenue
     Bonds, Series 1995.

 2005  2004 
(In thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR:
Unrestricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents $        7,221 $      22,604 
Restricted Current Cash and Cash Equivalents         49,846        57,840 
Restricted Noncurrent Cash and Cash Equivalents        25,401       107,958 

       Total cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $      82,468  $   188,402 

58

MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENTWASTEWATER SYSTEM

SCHEDULES OF CASH FLOWS

Wastewater System
Schedules of Cash Flows



59 :: 2005 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2005

(In thousands)

Variance
under

 Budget  Actual  (over) 

Collection system $ 15,988 $   15,582 $     406 

Pumping     27,417     26,196     1,221 

Treatment     54,235     55,206      (971)

Customer accounting      3,360      1,603     1,757 

Customer service      8,503      7,186     1,317 

General and administrative     34,669     33,480     1,189 

Totals $144,172 $139,253 $  4,919 
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Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department :: 62

(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

OPERATING REVENUES:

     Retail                         $   297,374   295,176   273,710   263,966    269,274   285,791   283,057   276,740   283,447    263,285 

    Wholesale    75,013    71,501    69,565    73,145     74,386    75,523    76,861    78,233    82,507     72,480 

    Other    19,573    18,896    18,827    16,996     16,963    18,078    17,834    17,649    16,651     15,293 

        Total operating
        revenues   391,960   385,573   362,102   354,107    360,623   379,392   377,752   372,622   382,605    351,058 

OPERATING AND
MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:

    Source of supply     5,710     5,110     5,248     4,728      4,771     5,015     4,320     4,396     3,757      3,643 

    Collection system    15,582    14,534    13,193    12,793     12,935    11,075    12,998    17,296    37,040     28,596 

    Pumping    27,800    26,095    25,785    24,631     22,267    21,680    26,161    33,064    31,979     33,440 

    Treatment   105,427    89,511    86,991    77,552     73,347    69,169    68,816    66,299    78,605     86,497 

    Transmission and
    distribution    21,900    21,452    21,086    19,357     18,229    17,419    16,409    16,656    29,675     24,157 

    Customer accounting
    and service    22,704    22,505    19,915    22,083     21,197    17,619    23,813    23,530    25,012     21,313 

    General and
    administrative    59,256    53,706    46,173    35,728     27,473    26,914    32,091    30,190    27,845     38,549 

        Total operating and
        maintenance expenses   258,379   232,913   218,391   196,872    180,219   168,891   184,608   191,431   233,913    236,195 

        Operating income
        before depreciation   133,581   152,660   143,711   157,235    180,404   210,501   193,144   181,191   148,692    114,863

DEPRECIATION   118,261   122,800   117,780   114,642    109,270    94,489    89,025    68,170    65,703     57,185 

        Operating
        income    15,320    29,860    25,931    42,593     71,134   116,012   104,119   113,021    82,989     57,678 

NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES):

    Interest income    22,487     8,785    26,153    32,820     60,233    57,917    43,967    45,466    41,867     32,341 

    Interest expense   (73,276)   (73,652)   (76,349)   (80,722)    (83,165)   (83,151)   (75,815)   (65,118)   (55,638)    (38,156)

    Other income       806       326     2,330     1,480      1,511     1,120     1,901       554       694        541 

    Transfers to County’s
    General Fund   (27,701)   (37,899)   (39,996)   (33,035)    (25,547)   (24,788)   (25,849)   (31,471)   (18,319)      -

        Income (loss) before
        contributions   (62,364)   (72,580)   (61,931)   (36,864)     24,166    67,110    48,323    62,452    51,593     52,404 

Capital contributions    54,898    42,936    47,500    57,177     47,574     -     -     -     -      -

        Increase (decrease)
        in net assets            $    (7,466)   (29,644)   (14,431)    20,313     71,740    67,110    48,323    62,452    51,593     52,404 
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(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

OPERATING REVENUES:

     Retail                         $   138,297   137,739   124,409   121,632    124,473   133,766   133,775   129,481   133,559    122,528 

    Wholesale    21,962    22,122    20,045    20,236     20,311    23,012    22,623    22,249    20,217     21,392 

    Other    10,646    10,230    10,302     9,227      9,525    10,068     9,436     9,313     8,950      7,952 

        Total operating
        revenues   170,905   170,091   154,756   151,095    154,309   166,846   165,834   161,043   162,726    151,872 

OPERATING AND
MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:

    Source of supply     5,710     5,110     5,248     4,728      4,771     5,015     4,320     4,396     3,757      3,643 

    Pumping     1,604     2,257     2,670     1,803      1,558     1,532     1,630     1,471     1,596      2,003 

    Treatment    50,221    40,660    38,412    34,466     32,640    29,700    29,865    28,802    35,611     35,262 

    Transmission and
    distribution    21,900    21,452    21,086    19,357     18,229    17,419    16,409    16,656    29,675     24,157 

    Customer accounting
    and service    13,915    12,546    12,135    12,578     12,431    10,024    13,235    13,055    14,006     12,031 

    General and
    administrative    25,776    20,349    15,183    11,412      9,430    10,227    12,239    11,800    10,227     13,295 

        Total operating and
        maintenance expenses   119,126   102,374    94,734    84,344     79,059    73,917    77,698    76,180    94,872     90,391 

        Operating income
        before depreciation    51,779    67,717    60,022    66,751     75,250    92,929    88,136    84,863    67,854     61,481 

DEPRECIATION    35,488    34,251    32,371    32,347     30,916    21,851    22,520    14,796    17,660     16,740 

        Operating income    16,291    33,466    27,651    34,404     44,334    71,078    65,616    70,067    50,194     44,741 

NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES):

    Interest income    10,060     4,016    13,027    16,943     32,560    28,965    20,136    20,742    16,764     14,862 

    Interest expense   (18,862)   (19,657)   (21,039)   (21,397)    (21,240)   (22,869)   (18,324)   (18,774)   (18,260)    (17,456)

    Other income       460       326     2,330     1,447        916       710     1,235       554       697        541 

    Transfers to County’s
    General Fund   (12,188)   (11,865)   (13,146)   (10,855)     (8,235)    (9,419)    (9,823)   (12,274)    (6,778)      -

        Income before
        contributions and
        transfers    (4,239)     6,286     8,823    20,542     48,335    68,465    58,840    60,315    42,617     42,688 

Capital contributions    16,251    14,245    17,726    21,168     15,199     -     -     -     -      -

Transfer (from)
to reserves    (9,454)   (32,305)   (40,272)   (18,414)    (15,432)     6,134    16,622   (26,765)     9,164     (6,418)

        Increase (decrease) 
        in net assets            $     2,558   (11,774)   (13,723)    23,296     48,102    74,599    75,462    33,550    51,781     36,270 
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(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

OPERATING REVENUES:

     Retail                         $   159,077   157,437   149,301   142,334   144,801   152,025   149,282   147,259   149,888    140,757 

    Wholesale    53,051    49,379    49,520    52,909    54,075    52,511    54,238    55,984    62,290     51,088 

    Other     8,927     8,666     8,525     7,769     7,438     8,010     8,398     8,336     7,701      7,341 

        Total operating
        revenues   221,055   215,482   207,346   203,012   206,314   212,546   211,918   211,579   219,879    199,186 

OPERATING AND
MAINTENANCE EXPENSES:

    Collection system    15,582    14,534    13,193    12,793    12,935    11,075    12,998    17,296    37,040     28,596 

    Pumping    26,196    23,838    23,115    22,828    20,709    20,148    24,531    31,593    30,383     31,437 

    Treatment    55,206    48,851    48,579    43,086    40,707    39,469    38,951    37,497    42,994     51,235 

    Customer accounting
    and service     8,789     9,959     7,780     9,505     8,766     7,595    10,578    10,475    11,006      9,282 

    General and
    administrative    33,480    33,357    30,990    24,316    18,043    16,687    19,852    18,390    17,618     25,254 

        Total operating and
        maintenance expenses   139,253   130,539   123,657   112,528   101,160    94,974   106,910   115,251   139,041    145,804 

        Operating income
        before depreciation    81,802    84,943    83,689    90,484   105,154   117,572   105,008    96,328    80,838     53,382 

DEPRECIATION    82,773    88,549    85,409    82,295    78,354    72,638    66,505    53,374    48,043     40,445 

        Operating
        income (loss)      (971)    (3,606)    (1,720)     8,189    26,800    44,934    38,503    42,954    32,795     12,937 

NON-OPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES):

    Interest income    12,427     4,769    13,126    15,877    27,673    28,952    23,831    24,724    25,103     17,479 

    Interest expense   (54,414)   (53,995)   (55,310)   (59,325)   (61,925)   (60,282)   (57,491)   (46,344)   (37,378)    (20,700)

    Other income (loss)       346     -     -        33       595       410       666     -        (3)      -

    Transfers to County’s
    General Fund   (15,513)   (26,034)   (26,850)   (22,180)   (17,312)   (15,369)   (16,026)   (19,197)   (11,541)      -

        Income (loss) before
        contributions and
        transfers   (58,125)   (78,866)   (70,754)   (57,406)   (24,169)    (1,355)   (10,517)     2,137     8,976      9,716 

Capital contributions    38,647    28,691    29,774    36,009    32,375     -     -     -     -      -

Transfer (from)
to reserves     9,454    32,305    40,272    18,414    15,432    (6,134)   (16,622)    26,765    (9,164)      6,418 

        Increase (decrease)
        in net assets            $   (10,024)   (17,870)      (708)    (2,983)    23,638    (7,489)   (27,139)    28,902      (188)     16,134 
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(in thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

PRIMARY DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Net operating
revenues                      $    133,581   152,660   143,711   157,235    180,404   210,501   193,144   181,191   148,692    114,863

Investment earnings(1)     13,781     3,489    18,923    19,337     38,989    31,489    23,678    24,232    19,869     15,535 

Net transfers 
from (to) Rate
Stabilization Fund     11,238    23,136    48,941    22,640    (16,000)   (12,000)   (37,000)     4,588   (17,254)     (3,620)

Net revenues available
for debt service            $    158,600   179,285   211,575   199,212    203,393   229,990   179,822   210,011   151,307    126,778 

Debt service
requirements(2)             $    104,123   114,196   115,629   115,654    115,632   114,976   102,501    99,802    81,781     70,518 

Actual coverage       1.52      1.57      1.83      1.72       1.76      2.00      1.75      2.10      1.85       1.80 

Required coverage       1.10      1.10      1.10      1.10       1.10      1.10      1.10      1.10      1.10       1.10 

SUBORDINATE DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Net revenues available
for debt service            $    158,600   179,285   211,575   199,212    203,393   229,990   179,822   210,011   151,307    126,778 

Less: Maximum
principal and interest(3)    115,032   115,272   115,629   115,654    115,653   115,654   115,654   108,184   108,184     79,444 

Adjusted
net revenues                 $     43,568    64,013    95,946    83,558     87,740   114,336    64,168   101,827    43,123     47,334 

Debt service and
reserve requirements(4) $     15,205    14,053    15,348    13,129     11,641    10,349     9,997     8,717     8,152      6,033 

Actual coverage       2.87      4.56      6.25      6.36       7.54     11.05      6.42     11.68      5.29       7.85 

Required coverage       1.00      1.00      1.00      1.00       1.00      1.00      1.00      1.00      1.00       1.00 

STATE REVOLVING FUND LOANS DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

Net revenues available
for debt service             $    158,600   179,285   211,575   199,212    203,393   229,990   179,822   210,011   151,307    126,778 

Less: revenue required
for primary debt
service coverage(5)    114,536   125,615   127,192   127,219    127,195   126,473   112,751   108,184   108,184     79,444 

Adjusted
net revenues                 $     44,064    53,670    84,383    71,993     76,198   103,517    67,071   101,827    43,123     47,334 

Debt service
requirements(6)             $     15,205    13,966    14,870    12,417     10,782    10,252     9,490     8,717     8,152      6,033 

Actual coverage       2.90      3.84      5.67      5.80       7.07     10.10      7.07     11.68      5.29       7.85 

Required coverage       1.15      1.15      1.15      1.15       1.15      1.15      1.15      1.15      1.15       1.15 

(1) Excludes interest income from Construction Fund.

(2) Represents debt service requirements on outstanding Bonds for such fiscal year.

(3) Maximum principal and interest requirements on the Bonds for such fiscal year.

(4) Represents debt service and reserve requirements on subordinate obligations.

(5) Represents 110% of primary debt service requirements.

(6) Represents debt service requirements on outstanding State Revolving Fund Loans for such fiscal year.
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(millions of gallons) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

WATER PUMPED:

    Water treatment plants:

        Alexander Orr, Jr.    63,929    64,546     61,774    59,953    60,187    61,603    61,074    61,636    62,308     62,071 

        John E. Preston    31,367    29,715     28,453    29,631    27,939    33,207    33,507    32,414    32,675     33,322 

        Hialeah    26,154    27,555     30,204    27,238    26,317    26,016    26,000    25,920    25,471     25,458 

        Interim plants     2,580     2,433      2,483     2,484     2,406     2,439     2,429     2,222     2,116      2,165 

    Purchased water     1,767     2,000      2,340     2,026     2,136     2,233     2,057     1,972     1,954      2,120 

            Total water
            pumped   125,797   126,249    125,254   121,332   118,985   125,498   125,067   124,164   124,524    125,136 

WATER SOLD:

    Wholesale:

        Hialeah     8,685     7,730      8,454     8,742     8,384     8,950     8,931     8,989     9,124      9,734 

        Miami Beach     7,898     7,994      7,802     7,456     7,853     8,714     8,102     7,901     8,404      8,612 

        North Miami Beach     4,633     4,652      4,450     4,411     4,350     5,368     5,232     5,232     4,970      5,230 

        North Miami     1,534     1,602      1,536     1,612     1,862     1,917     2,096     1,890     2,117      2,510 

        Opa-Locka       994       960        954     1,001     1,030     1,206     1,214     1,253     1,276      1,359 

        Miami Springs       758     1,016        906       918       852       918       953       882       863        943 

        Hialeah Gardens       713       655        619       687       741       669       590       690       614        146 

        Bal Harbour       526       552        564       542       522       596       592       550       555        545 

        Medley       488       577        506       434       441       528       630       430       399        492 

        Bay Harbor Islands       418       435        415       405       351       382       375       382       371        382 

        Surfside       385       369        349       336       328       341       342       348       353        358 

        North Bay Village       359       375        356       452       450       471       480       475       477        474 

        West Miami       284       283        286       292       280       285       267       243       327        343 

        Indian Creek Village       143       156        138       138       131       156       158       165       151        156 

        Virginia Gardens        44        10         14         8        10        11        55       105       101        113

            Total wholesale    27,862    27,366     27,349    27,434    27,585    30,512    30,017    29,535    30,102     31,397 

    Retail    70,114    70,033     71,891    68,679    64,383    68,541    67,454    66,560    66,935     67,514 

            Total water sold    97,976    97,399     99,240    96,113    91,968    99,053    97,471    96,095    97,037     98,911

 Non - account water    27,821    28,850     26,014    25,219    27,017    26,445    27,596    28,069    27,487     26,225 

 Non - account water
 as a percentage of total
 water pumped     22.12%     22.85%      20.77%     20.79%     22.71%     21.07%     22.06%     22.61%     22.07%      20.96%

 Unaccounted for water
 as a percentage of total
 water pumped   10.56%   8.34%    6.45%   5.10%      6.23%      6.41%     11.02%      8.86%      8.93%       8.57%

MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENTWATER USAGE - LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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(millions of gallons) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

WASTEWATER PLANT FLOWS:

    North District Plant    33,113    31,105     33,679    35,970    36,463    34,988    36,468    35,042    37,594     35,679 

    Central District Plant    44,705    41,968     39,847    44,581    44,061    44,858    44,017    46,766    45,741     47,403 

    South District Plant    34,491    30,409     34,446    35,149    33,479    32,398    33,041    29,817    34,536     33,346 

            Total wastewater
            plant flows   112,309   103,482    107,972   115,700   114,003   112,244   113,526   111,625   117,871    116,428

WASTEWATER TREATED:

    Wholesale:

        Hialeah    10,955    10,342      9,247    10,328    10,825    11,074    11,430    13,438    15,988     13,906 

        Miami Beach     8,721     7,862      8,906     9,301     8,942     9,361     9,675     9,196    10,076      9,697 

        North Miami     4,080     3,885      4,025     4,116     4,032     4,071     4,057     3,608     4,184      3,521 

        Coral Gables     1,956     2,503      2,724     2,537     2,031     1,844     2,370     1,991     1,969      1,605 

        Miami Springs     1,422     1,010        998     1,205     1,477     1,328     1,030     1,480     1,799      1,396 

        North Miami Beach       812       888        994     1,125     1,141     1,208     1,171     1,194     1,350      1,475 

        Opa-Locka       783       711        706     1,101     2,287     1,135     1,204     1,267     1,382        829 

        Medley       667       862        742       628       469       514       536       469       418        541 

        Hialeah Gardens       542       144        443       197        94       137       166       147       154        123 

        Florida City       420       416        376       367       317       255       216       173       115        113

        Homestead Air
        Force Base (1)       236       357        209       197       280       241       188     -     -        382 

        West Miami       177       138        177       188       198       187       189       194       188        165 

        Homestead       162        17         39        97         5         1       237       440       600        689 

            Total wholesale    30,933    29,135     29,586    31,387    32,098    31,356    32,469    33,597    38,223     34,442 

     Retail    52,261    51,682     52,757    50,619    45,862    47,862    50,445    51,440    51,071     51,209 

     Unaccounted for
      wastewater    29,115    22,665     25,629    33,694    36,043    33,026    30,612    26,588    28,577     30,777 

            Total wastewater
            treated   112,309   103,482    107,972   115,700   114,003   112,244   113,526   111,625   117,871    116,428

 Unaccounted for wastewater
 as a percentage of total
 wastewater treated     25.92%     21.90%      23.74%     29.12%     31.62%     29.42%     26.96%     23.82%     24.24%      26.43%

ANNUAL RAINFALL (inches):
(2)      65.4      60.0       68.1      73.1      79.7      54.4      59.0      66.7      71.7       59.2 

(1) Classified as retail customer in fiscal years 1996 through 1999.
(2) Source:  National Weather Service Forecast Office in Miami for rainfall recorded in inches at Miami International Airport.

MIAMI-DADE WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENTWASTEWATER TREATMENT - LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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Number of Customers
at Fiscal Year-End

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ra tio of
Wastewater Cus tom ers

       Num ber of Cus tomers to Water
Year Wa ter Wastewater Cus tom ers
1996   353,526   263,649      74.6 %
1997   359,559   270,639      75.3 
1998   364,957   273,576      75.0 
1999   369,924   280,594      75.9 
2000   372,973   283,656      76.1 
2001   388,169   294,000      75.7 
2002   398,073   306,061      76.9 
2003   408,172   315,180      77.2 
2004   401,181   316,170      78.8 
2005   407,601   322,513      79.1 

Largest System Customers
October 2004 - September 2005

Dol lar Per cent of
Amount Sys tem Gross

Name (in thou sands) Rev e nues
WA TER SYS TEM:

City of Mi ami Beach    $6,713       3.9 %
City of Hialeah     6,253       3.7 

   City of North Mi ami Beach     3,937       2.3 
   Dade County Aviation     2,244       1.3 
   City of North Mi ami     1,294       0.8 
   City of Opa-Locka       844       0.5 
   Florida Power & Light Company       806       0.5 
   Hialeah Gardens       606       0.4 
   City of Mi ami Springs       546       0.3 
   Bal Har bour       447       0.3 

WASTEWATER SYS TEM:

City of Hialeah   $18,754       8.5 %
City of Mi ami Beach    14,905       6.7 
City of North Mi ami     6,971       3.2 
City of Coral Ga bles     3,327       1.5 
City of Mi ami Springs     2,426       1.1 
City of North Mi ami Beach     1,414       0.6 
City of Opa-Locka     1,365       0.6 
City of Med ley     1,166       0.5 
Dade County Aviation     1,065       0.5 
Hialeah Gardens       947       0.4 
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            Type of Cov erage  Pol icy Number /
    and In surance Company   Pol icy Pe riod  De tails of Cov erage Limits of Li ability

Pub lic Em ployees Blan ket Bond: CCP001342110 / Em ployee dis hon esty $1,000,000 blanket bond

Fidelity & De posit Co. of 08/19/05 - 08/19/08 $50,000 de ducti ble

Mary land

Money and Se cu ri ties: CCP001936109 / Loss inside premises Vari ous

Fidelity & De posit Co. of 11/25/04 - 11/25/05 $250 de ducti ble

Mary land Loss outside premises Vari ous

$250 de ducti ble

For gery or al tera tion $100,000

Ac ci den tal Death: ETB-105355 / Ac ci den tal death and $25,000

Hart ford Life In sur ance Co. 08/29/05 - 08/29/06 dis mem ber ment

Prop erty In sur ance: Var i ous “All risk” coverage Var i ous

Var i ous 10/31/04 - 10/31/05 on real and per sonal

property and out falls

Auto mo bile Li abil ity: N/A   / Self-insured $100,000 per person/

con tinu ous $200,000 per occurrence

pursuant to F.S. 768.28

Gen eral Li abil ity: N/A  / Self-insured $100,000 per person/

con tinu ous $200,000 per occurrence

pursuant to F.S. 768.28

Work ers' Com pen sa tion: N/A  / Self-insured Statu tory cov er age

Miami-Dade County Self- con tin u ous pursuant to F.S. 440

In sur ance Fund
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Population
Miami-Dade County, Florida

Selected Years
1900-2005

An nual
Res i dent In crease Per cent
Year Pop u la tion (De crease) Change
1900     4,955    -        -

1910    11,933     6,978       9.2 %

1920    42,752    30,819      13.6 

1930   142,955   100,203      12.8 

1940   267,739   124,784       6.5 

1950   495,084   227,345       6.3 

1960   935,047   439,963       6.5 

1970 1,267,792   332,745       3.1 

1980 1,625,781   357,989       2.5 

1990 1,967,000   341,219       1.9 

2000 2,253,485   286,485       1.4 

2001 2,283,319    29,834       1.3 

2002 2,313,047    29,728       1.3 

2003 2,342,739    29,692       1.3 

2004 2,372,418    29,679       1.3 

2005 2,402,105    29,687       1.3 

Source:  U.S. Bu reau of the Census figures 1900-2000; Planning Research Section,
Miami-Dade County Department of Planning and Zoning estimates for other years.
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Number of Building Permits Issued for Housekeeping Units
and Value of Permits for Housekeeping and Total Units

Miami-Dade County, Florida
1995-2004

Value of Permits Is sued
Number of Per mits Is sued Res i den tial

Cal en dar Sin gle Fam ily Multi-fam ily Con struc tion
Year Houses Build ings (in thousands)
1995     7,364      7,425   $1,213,966 

1996     3,802      2,749      540,183 

1997     5,146      4,592      817,140 

1998     5,354      5,556      921,813 

1999     6,669      7,018    1,064,119

2000     5,988      6,477    1,198,164 

2001     6,829      7,168    1,291,357 

2002     6,374      8,219    1,313,869 

2003     8,740      6,793    1,697,337 

2004     9,499     13,251    2,565,383 

Source:  University of Florida, Bu reau of Economic and Business Research,
Build ing Per mit Ac tiv ity in Florida.
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Construction Activity
Miami-Dade County, Florida

1996-2005

       Com mercial Construction          Res idential Construction
Num ber Num ber

      Fis cal of Value of Value
Year   Buildings (in thousands)   Units (in thousands)
1996       698  299,347      6,629    455,715 

1997       596  325,797     10,422    643,489 

1998       495  442,924      8,597    679,105 

1999       600  489,353      9,998    781,734 

2000       601  513,457      8,360    687,205 

2001       525  616,442      9,882    845,123 

2002       498  722,077      8,805    751,960 

2003       397  697,100      9,373    819,753 

2004       794  359,033      9,603    982,420 

2005       914  273,735      8,893  1,031,757 

Source:  Miami-Dade County Building Department.  In cludes only Un incorporated Area.
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The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department will be a utility 

that is a leader in providing public health protection and 

environmentally sound and innovative utility services using state-

of-the-art technologies, proven operational expertise, resource 

planning and excellent customer service in a cost-effective manner.  

vision statement

The Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Department is 

committed to serving the needs of Miami-Dade County 

residents, businesses, and visitors by providing 

high-quality drinking water and wastewater disposal 

services while providing for future economic growth 

via progressive planning; implementing water 

conservation measures; safeguarding public health 

and the environment; and providing for continuous 

process improvements and cost efficiencies.  

mission statement
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Miami-Dade  
Water and Sewer  
Department
A Department of  
Miami-Dade County, Florida

3071 S.W. 38 Avenue
Miami, Florida 33146
305-665-7471

Miami-Dade County provides 
equal access and equal 
opportunity in employment 
and services and does not 
discriminate on the basis of 
disability. It is the policy of 
Miami-Dade County to comply 
with all the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 
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